T.C

YEDİTEPE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF HEALTH SCIENCES DEPARTMENT OF NUTRITION AND DIETETICS

HERBAL SUPPORT USAGE AMONG CONSULTANTS WHO APPLY TO NUTRITION AND DIETETICS DEPARTMENT OF A SPECIAL HOSPITAL IN ISTANBUL TO LOSE WEIGHT

MASTER THESIS

AYÇA GÜLERYÜZ

T.C YEDİTEPE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF HEALTH SCIENCES DEPARTMENT OF NUTRITION AND DIETETICS

HERBAL SUPPORT USAGE AMONG CONSULTANTS WHO APPLY TO NUTRITION AND DIETETICS DEPARTMENT OF A SPECIAL HOSPITAL IN ISTANBUL TO LOSE WEIGHT

MASTER THESIS

AYÇA GÜLERYÜZ

SUPERVISOR
Assist. Prof. Dr. Binnur OKAN BAKIR

İstanbul-2019

TEZ ONAYI FORMU

Kurum

: Yeditepe Üniversitesi Sağlık Bilimleri Enstitüsü

Program

: Beslenme ve Diyetetik

Tez Başlığı

: İstanbul'da Zayıflamak İçin Özel Bir Hastanenin Beslenme ve Diyetetik

Polikliniğine Başvuran Danışanların Zayıflama Diyetlerine Ek Olarak Bitkisel Destekleri

Kullanımları

Tez Sahibi

: Ayça Güleryüz

Sınav Tarihi

: 09.05.2019

Bu çalışma jurimiz tarafından kapsam ve kalite yönünden Yüksek Lisans Tezi olarak kabul edilmiştir.

| | Unvanı, Adı-Soyadı (Kurumu) | İmza |
|----------------|--|------|
| Jüri Başkanı: | Dr. Öğr. Üyesi Elvan Yılmaz Akığılı Sağlık Bilimleri Üniversitesl | 1.63 |
| Tez danışmanı: | Dr. Öğr. Üyesi Binnur Okan Bakır Yeditepe Üniversitesi | Bus |
| Üye: | Dr. Öğr. Üyesi İrem Kaya Cebioğlu Yeditepe Üniversitesi | 1 JM |

ONAY

Bu tez Yeditepe Üniversitesi Lisansüstü Eğitim-Öğretim ve Sınav Yönetmeliğinin ilgili maddeleri uyarınca yukarıdaki jüri tarafından uygun görülmüş ve Enstitü Yönetim Kurulu'nun 17./05./2019.... tarih ve 2019./08...od...... sayılı kararı ile onaylanmıştır.

Prof. Dr. Bayram YILMAZ

Sağlık Bilimleri Enstitüsü Müdürü

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this thesis is my own work and that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, it contains no material previously published or written by another person nor material which has been accepted for the award of any other degree except where due acknowledgment has been made in the text.

16.04.2019

Ayça Güleryüz

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

With all the effort made and attention paid this thesis work has been such a devotion to me and my dedicated supervisor Assist. Prof. Dr. Binnur Okan Bakır. She has been sincerely giving and always there whenever I needed her. For the most part it is a great honor to be her student and I am willing to take our scientific relationship forward.

I would like to thank my parents who supported me all my life, and my special thanks to my husband Sinan Güleryüz, who is helpful and supporter during my thesis work as in all my life.

Ayça Güleryüz

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| APPROVAL | ii |
|--|------|
| DECLARATION | iii |
| ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS | iv |
| TABLE OF CONTENTS | V |
| LIST OF TABLES | vii |
| LIST ABBREVIATIONS | viii |
| ABSTRACT | ix |
| ABSTRACT (Turkish) | X |
| 1. INTRODUCTION and AIM | 1 |
| 2. GENERAL INFORMATION/ LITERATURE REVIEW | 2 |
| 2.1. Obesity | 2 |
| 2.1.1. Diagnosis of Obesity | 2 |
| 2.1.1.1. Body Mass Index | 2 |
| 2.1.1.2. Waist Circumference and Waist to Hip Ratio | 2 |
| 2.2. Prevalence of Obesity | 3 |
| 2.3. Etiology of Obesity | 4 |
| 2.4. Treatment of Obesity | 5 |
| 2.4.1. Medical Nutritional Therapy | 5 |
| 2.4.2. Physical Activity | 6 |
| 2.4.3. Anti- Obesity Drugs | 7 |
| 2.4.4. Bariatric Surgery | 8 |
| 2.4.5. Traditional and Complementary Medical Applications: Herbal Supports | 8 |
| 2.4.5.1. Herbal Supports (Phytotherapy) in the Treatment of Obesity | 9 |
| 2.4.5.1.A. Green Tea | 9 |
| 2.4.5.1.B. White Tea | 10 |
| 2.4.5.1.C. Mate Tea | 11 |
| 2.4.5.1.D. Black Seed | 11 |
| 2.4.5.1.E. Cinnamon | 12 |
| 2.4.5.1.F. Flax Seed | 13 |
| 2.4.5.1.G. Corn Silk | 13 |
| 2.4.5.1.H. Cherry Stalk | 14 |
| 2.4.5.1.I. Ginger | 14 |

| 2.4.5.1.J. Turmeric | 14 |
|-------------------------------|----|
| 3. MATERIALS AND METHODS | 16 |
| 3.1. Participants | 16 |
| 3.2. Data Collection | 16 |
| 3.3. Statistical Analysis | 16 |
| 3.4. Ethical Approval | 17 |
| 4. FINDINGS | 18 |
| 5. DISCUSSION | 38 |
| 6. CONCLUSION | 45 |
| 7. REFERENCES | 46 |
| Appendix 1. Questionnare Form | 55 |
| Appendix 2. Ethical Approval | 69 |
| Appendix 3. Resume | 71 |

LIST OF TABLES

| Table 2.1. Evaluation of Body Weight According to BMI in Adults | 2 |
|--|----|
| Table 2.2. Sex-Specific Waist Circumference | 3 |
| Table 2.3. Ethnic-specific values for waist circumference | 3 |
| Table 2.4. Current FDA approved anti-obesity drugs | 7 |
| Table 4.1. Comparison of herbal supplement usage between men and | |
| women with mean waist circumferences | 18 |
| Table 4.2. Comparison of herbal supplement usage according to educational | |
| Status | 19 |
| Table 4.3. Comparison of the usage of herbal supplements among beliefs on | |
| benefits on health | 19 |
| Table 4.4. Use of Herbal Supplements | 20 |
| Table 4.5. Reasons Why Participants do not Use Herbal Supplements | 20 |
| Table 4.6. Comparison of Herbal Supplement Preferences According | |
| to Chronic Constipation Status | 21 |
| Table 4.7. Believes on Difficulties in Losing Weight and Their Reasons | 21 |
| Table 4.8. Comparison of Herbal Supplement Usage According to the | |
| Difficulty in Weight Loss | 22 |
| Table 4.9. Herbal Supplement Preference | 22 |
| Table 4.10. Cinnamon | 23 |
| Table 4.11. Green Tea | 25 |
| Table 4.12. Ginger | 26 |
| Table 4.13. Black seed | 28 |
| Table 4.14. Flaxseed | 29 |
| Table 4.15. Cherry Stalk | 31 |
| Table 4.16. White Tea | 33 |
| Table 4.17. Turmeric | 34 |
| Table 4.18. Mate Tea | 35 |
| Table 4.19. Corn Silk | 36 |

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

BMI Body Mass Index

CDC The United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

EGCG Epigallocatechin Gallate

HELENA Healthy Lifestyle in Europe by Nutrition in Adolescence

HOMA-IR Homeostatic Model Assessment of Insulin Resistance

LDL Low Density Lipoprotein

TURDEP Turkey Diabetes, Hypertension, Obesity and Endocrinology Diseases

Prevalence Study

WC Waist circumference

WHO World Health Organization

ABSTRACT

Guleryuz, A. (2019). Herbal Support Usage Among Consultants Who Apply

To Nutrition And Dietetics Department of a Special Hospital in Istanbul to Lose

Weight. Yeditepe University, Institute of Health Science, Department of Nutrition

and Dietetics, Master Thesis. İstanbul.

According to World Health Organization usage of herbal products is 70-80% of

all over the world. In Turkey 32-72% of the population are using herbal products for

medical issues. In general, herbal products seem to be natural and harmless. For this

reason this study was designed to evaluate knowledge, conscious, preference and usage

of consultants among 10 herbal products which are selected and placed in the survey

(green tea, cinnamon, turmeric, ginger, white tea, black seed, flaxseed, charry stalk, mate

tea, corn silk). Socio-demographic information (age, sex, education, etc.) of the

participants were questioned and waist measurements were taken with a tape measure. Of

the 133 people who completed the study, 75% were women and 25% were men. The age

range of the participants is 22-66. When the waist circumference measurements of the

participants were evaluated in terms of men and women, a significant relationship was

found between the height of the waist circumference and herbal product usage in both

groups (for women p: $0.000 \le 0.05$, for men p: $0.041 \le 0.05$). When the education levels of

the participants were compared, no significant relationship was found with the usage of

herbal products (p: 0.143 > 0.05). The main reasons for the use of herbal supplements by

participants are weight loss. It was observed that participants who had difficulty in weight

gain more use of herbal supplements. As far as human health is concerned, it is necessary

to make people more aware of herbal supports, and to oversee the production, sales and

usage of herbal products by the ministries.

Key words: Obesity, herbal supplements, diet

ix

ÖZET

Güleryüz, A. (2019). İstanbul'da Zayıflamak İçin Özel Bir Hastanenin Beslenme ve Diyetetik Polikliniğine Başvuran Danışanların Zayıflama Diyetlerine Ek Olarak Bitkisel Destekleri Kullanımları. Yeditepe Üniversitesi Sağlık Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Beslenme ve Diyetetik Bölümü Master Tezi. İstanbul.

Milattan önce 3000 yıllarına kadar uzanan bitki kullanımı günümüzde Dünya Sağlık Örgütü'nün verilerine bakıldığında dünya nüfusunun %70-80'ini kapsamaktadır. Türkiye'de de bitkisel destekleri tedavi amaçlı kullanan nüfus %32-72'dir. Obezite ve çoğu hastalığın tedavisinde kullanılan bitkiler genel algıda doğal olduğu için zararsız gözüyle bakmaktadırlar. Bu nedenle bu çalışmanın amacı bitkisel ürünler hakkında bireylerin bilgi düzeyleri, ankette yer alan 10 bitkinin (yeşilçay, tarçın, zerdeçal, beyaz çay, zencefil, çörekotu, keten tohumu, kiraz sapı, mate çayı, mısır püskülü) kullanım amaçları, yöntemleri, bitkileri temin ettikleri yerler hakkında bilgi edinebilmektir. Katılımcıların sosyo-demografik bilgileri (yaş, cinsiyet, eğitim vb.) sorgulanmış, bel ölçümleri mezura ile alınmıştır. Çalışmayı tamamlayan 133 kişinin %75'i kadın %25'i erkektir. Katılımcıların yaş aralığı 22-66'dır. Katılımcıların kadın ve erkek olarak ayrı ayrı bel çevresi ölçümleri değerlendirildiğinde iki grupta da bel çevresi yüksekliği ile bitki kullanımı arasında anlamlı ilişki bulunmuştur (kadınlar için; p: 0,000≤0,05, erkekler için p: 0,041≤0,05). Katılımcıların eğitim düzeyleri karşılaştırıldığında, bitkisel destek kullanımları ile anlamlı bir ilişki bulunamamıştır (p:0,143>0,05). Bitkisel desteklerin katılımcılar tarafından kullanım nedenlerinin başında kilo kaybı gelmektedir. Kilo vermekte zorlanan katılımcıların bitkisel destekleri daha fazla kullandığı görülmüştür. İnsan sağlığı söz konusu olunca kişilerin bitkisel destekler hakkında daha fazla bilinçlendirilmesi, bakanlıklar tarafından bitkisel desteklerin üretim, satış ve kullanımlarının daha fazla denetlemesi gerekmektedir.

Anahtar Kelimeler: obezite, bitkisel destekler, diyet

1. INTRODUCTION AND AIM

According to the American Heart Foundation; obesity, is directly connected to major health problems such as heart disease, type 2 diabetes, cancer and stroke. It also causes raising insulin resistance, gallstones, osteoarthritis, and respiratory problems (1). All over the world obesity has rising numbers. According to report in 2014 it is about more than 1.9 billion adults who are overweight nearly 600 million of them is obese (2). Between 1980 and 2008 in some countries numbers of obese people became double (3). While underlying the causes of obesity, it should be remained that obesity is a complex problem (4). High caloric diets, sedentary lifestyle, social environment, genetic factors economic problems and education can be listed as causes of obesity (3-5). Outcomes of obesity such as diabetic complications, heart surgeries, stroke, liver diseases, some cancer types, pregnancy problems such as preeclampsia, gestational diabetes and with mental problems like depression made increase in medical costs of countries by every year. Also, productivity of the population is going down with obesity (4, 6). The management and treatment of obesity is the most important step for all over the world because it would help to reduce mortality and morbidity rates among obese people (7). There are many options to treat obesity such as physical activity, eating habit modification, anti-obesity drugs, bariatric surgery (8). According to the Pharmacological Management of Obesity: An Endocrine Society Clinical Practice Guideline main strategy should be appropriate diet, physical activity and lifestyle changes (9). People can lose weight by this way, but it is hard to follow up for a long time (10). Obese people can easily give up on changes and can be frustrated that's why they want some easy ways to lose weight or accelerate weight loss (9). Use of herbal supplements as one element of alternative medicine has been widely increased all over the world (11). Many researchers studied to investigate efficacy and safety of herbal supplements and, they searched herbal supplements for treatment of obesity (12). Belief about herbal supplements is not only losing weight also it will promote healthier lives (13).

Aim of the present study is to understand preferences of consultants about herbal supports who are applying to nutrition and dietetics department of a hospital. In addition, people who prefer herbal supplements, their aim of usage, usage areas, preparation, frequency of usage, place to purchase, purchase patterns, believes are examined to explain the relationship between the person's educational status, sex and age.

2. GENERAL INFORMATION / LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Obesity

According to the World Health Organization (WHO) excessive fat accumulation leads to obesity. It is a multi-faced chronic disease that is rapidly increasing. In high- and middle-income countries obesity is destructive for both health and wealth (14). Body mass index (BMI) is the most used method to determine obesity. Also, waist circumference and waist: hip ratio are other determinants of obesity (5, 15).

2.1.1 Diagnosis of Obesity

2.1.1.1. Body Mass Index (BMI)

BMI is a criterion used to determine nutritional status for adults and it helps to classify underweight, normal weight, overweight or obesity. It is defined as the weight in kilograms divided by the square of the height in meters (kg/m2) (16). BMI classes are same for the both sex and it is also age independent. Evaluation of body weight according to BMI in adults is showed in Table 2.1 (16).

Table 2.1. Evaluation of body weight according to BMI in adults (16)

| Nutritional status | BMI (kg/m²) |
|--------------------|-------------|
| Underweight | <18,5 |
| Normal Weight | 18,5-24,99 |
| Pre-obesity | 25,00-29,99 |
| Obesity | ≥30,00 |
| Obesity Class 1 | 30,00-34,99 |
| Obesity Class 2 | 35,00-39,99 |
| Obesity Class 3 | ≥40,00 |

2.1.1.2. Waist Circumference and Waist to Hip Ratio

Waist circumference (WC) and waist to hip ratio are simple anthropometric methods. Abdominal fat accumulation is the key of that methods (5).

WC is used to determine excessive fat around the waist. WC of 102 centimeters or more in men or waist circumference of 88 centimeters or more in women is associated with obesity (5). Waist to hip ratio >1.0 in men and >0.85 in women shows abdominal fat

accumulation. Also, there would be another health problems such as type 2 diabetes, heart disease and high blood pressure. Table 2.2. shows waist circumferences among sex (5).

Table 2.2. Sex-specific waist circumference (5)

| | WC (cm) |
|-------|---------|
| Women | ≥88 |
| Men | ≥102 |

On the other hand, The Diabetes Canada 2018 Clinical Practice Guidelines for the Prevention and Management of Diabetes in Canada provides a guideline for waist circumference targets based on sex and ethnicity. Table 2.3. shows waist circumferences among sex and ethnicity (15).

Table 2.3. Ethnic-specific values for waist circumference (15)

| Central obesity as defined by WC | | | |
|----------------------------------|---------------------------|--|--|
| Men - cm | Women -cm | | |
| 94 or greater | 80 or greater | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| 90 or greater | 80 or greater | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | Men - cm 94 or greater | | |

2.2 Prevalence of Obesity

The United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) reported that in 2015, 34.9% of the American adults were obese. Non-Hispanic black Americans have the highest obesity rate. Hispanic and non-Hispanic white Americans followed respectively. The CDC also reported that obesity was seen mostly between forty and fiftynine years of age in adults (14).

According to the WHO reports in 2016, about 39% of women and 39% of men were overweight all over the world (17).

Turkey Diabetes, Hypertension, Obesity and Endocrinology Diseases Prevalence Study (TURDEP) II which is conducted by İstanbul University and Ministry of Health announced reports that obesity rate of Turkey has been found 32%. In general, 2/3 of adults are at least overweight or obese. Between TURDEP-I and II in 12-year period obesity rates, waist and hip circumferences had been increased. The weight of the adults was increased 6 kg, their waist circumference increased 6 cm, hip circumference increased 7 cm; obesity for all women and men increased by 44% in these (18).

2.3 Etiology of Obesity

Obesity is stated as multicomponent chronic disease. There is no single cause of obesity. It is composed of genetic, endocrine, metabolic, social, cultural, behavioral and psychological components (19).

Although obesity is multifactorial, it is known that excessive calorie consumption has vital role. Foods consist of the nutrients which are needed for a healthy body. These nutrients give the energy that body needs (3). Energy intake and energy expenditure should be balanced for the maintaining of the body weight. Everyday body needs energy to maintain normal body metabolism. This is resting metabolic rate. Energy expenditure depends on resting metabolic rate or resting energy. If the energy intake is greater than the energy expenditure, balance is changing, and the excess energy is stored as fat in the fat tissues (2).

Resting energy expenditure uses calories from the foods. Other calories are used up with physical activity or other daily activities. There is a simple relationship between energy intake and energy use. Weight gain results from increased energy intake and reduced energy expenditure, or both (14).

According to a hypothesis obesity is congenital disease. Genetic factors are important for body weight (3). Being over weighted or obese is caused by existing genes and behaviors together. For example, body weight is similar in close relatives, especially in similar twins sharing the same genetic codes (14). But also, in a study it was shown that infant rats were tend to obesity when high fat diet during pregnancy and lactation (3). Another study supports that idea: because genetic and the environment is in the center of the body weight, people who are genetically susceptible, gene-environment interaction effects their risk for developing obesity (20).

On the other hand, a study suggests that hormonal regulators play vital role for body weight (21). This study says that appetite in adults is regulated by hormones. Hypothalamic diseases can cause overbearing and obese in animals and, in rare cases obesity in humans (14).

According to a study, leptin plays a vital role for obesity and energy balance. It was seen that hyperphagia and obesity in both humans and animals can be caused by leptin deficiency (22).

There is another hypothesis is suggested that endocrine system can be affected by exogenous chemicals which are called endocrine-disrupting chemicals. These chemicals can block the action of hormones. Obesity, type 2 diabetes mellitus and the metabolic syndrome might be seen frequently if endocrine system was affected (23).

Easy and fast access to high-caloric foods which is called obesogenic environment, and inactivity together can cause positive energy balance thus obesity (24).

In another theory, starting from the globalization, modern food markets came up and high caloric foods can be accessed easily and sold cheap. Also increase in urbanization changed lifestyle and environment. Less farming and less consumption of vegetables and fruits resulted. Fat and sugar content of foods such as fast-foods, sugar-sweetened beverages which contains high calories were started to be consumed by the population (20).

At the same time, increasing use of technology, motorization caused people to shift toward physically less mobile (25). Also, no accessible walking or biking places made people use transportation vehicles and reduced activities (4).

Recent studies have shown that sedentary lifestyle such as watching television and playing computer games are related with increased of obesity rates (26).

In 1983, for the first-time importance of gut microbiota on metabolism is observed by Wostmann et al. Research in recent years which supports Wostmann, that shows different gut microbiota between obese individuals and normal weight individuals (3).

2.4 Treatment of Obesity

2.4.1. Medical Nutrition Therapy

Nutritional treatment for obese people should focus on minimizing fat mass at the same time protecting lean body mass. Success on medical nutritional therapy means avoiding weight regain, providing well-being and improving self-esteem (27).

According to a study, energy intake is found to be positively correlated with BMI. Nutritional therapy is found to be one of the useful treatments of obesity (26). The mean daily energy requirement of a person is depending on the age, height, weight and activity level (3). Purpose of the nutritional therapy is reducing daily energy intake. There are many types of energy-restricted diets are used for weight loss: low-fat, high protein, low carbohydrate. In a study conducted by Sacks, F.M. showed that calorie restricted diets are clinically meaningful but different macronutrients are not significantly important (28). There is another study supports the same results (29). Noakes, M et al tested high protein diets and high carbohydrate diets, but both were calorie restricted diets. As a conclusion weight loss was observed in both diets (28, 29).

Despite losing weight with calorie restriction for the treatment of obesity is successful in short term, longer term weight gain is observed in many people.

Researchers claim that for the long-lasting behavioral changes, dieticians should teach the techniques of behavioral management with calorie restricted diets together (3, 26, 28,29).

2.4.2. Physical Activity

It has been showed that there is consistent evidence that low physical activity is associated with higher levels of body fat (30). It is clear that if energy expenditure increases, negative energy balance occurs, and it promotes growing of lean body mass (26). Physical activity also improves insulin sensitivity through weight reduction (5). Increased insulin sensitivity and increased lean body mass helps treatment of obesity. European projects, Healthy Lifestyle in Europe by Nutrition in Adolescence (HELENA), includes multicenter studies that aimed to show relationship between physical activity and obesity. HELENA pointed that adolescents consume high calories but having high levels of physical activity had less weight than those with a lower level of physical activity (31).

As a conclusion, authorities recommend physical activity to struggle with obesity. At least 150 minutes of activity should be done per week according to The Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans (20). This activity can be of moderate-intensity aerobic activities such as walking, biking, water aerobics etc. If it is vigorous-intensity aerobic activities such as jumping rope, swimming, jogging it is enough to do 75 minutes per week (20, 27).

2.4.3. Anti-Obesity Drugs

The other way of treatment of obesity is anti-obesity drugs. In recent years, there are clinical practice guidelines which are supporting treatment of obesity by medical cares, were published by the American Association of Clinical Endocrinologists and the American Endocrinology College (32, 33). 5 anti-obesity drugs are accepted as safe according to Food and Drug Administration (FDA): Orlistat (Xenical), Phentermine (Qsymia), Belviq (Lorcaserin), combination of Naltrexone and Bupropion and Saxaffena (Liraglutide) (34). Table 2.4 shows names, mechanism, dosage and major side effects of anti- obesity drugs which are approved by the FDA (34).

Table 2.4. Current FDA-Approved Anti-Obesity Drugs (34)

| Generic Name | Brand Name | Mechanism of Action | Dosag e | Effect on Lipid Profile | Amount of Weight Loss (Approxi mately) in kg | Major Side Effects |
|---------------------------|-----------------|---|--------------------------------|---|--|--|
| Orlistat | Xenical, Ali | Lipase inhibitor | 120 mg | Lower LDL Lover total cholesterol Lower Triglycerides | 5.8-6.7 | Steatorrhea, flatulence |
| Lorcaserin | Belviq | Serotonin agonist (5- HT2C receptor agonist) | 10 mg | Lower Total cholesterol Lower Triglycerides Same LDL Same HDL | 5.8 | Headache, dizziness, and nausea |
| Phentermine/ topiramat | Qsymia | Stimulator of synaptic noradrenaline, dopamine and serotonin release b augmenting the activity of g aminobutyrate | 3.75/2 3 mg 7.5/46 mg | Lower Total cholesterol Lower LDL Lower Triglycerides Higher HDL | 8.1-10.2 | Dry mouth, paresthesia, constipation, insomnia, dizziness |
| Naltrexone/ bupropion | Contrav | Opioid receptor antagonist and reuptake inhibitor of dopamine and noradrenaline e | 32/36 0 mg | Lower Total cholesterol LowerLDL Lower Triglycerides Higher HDL | 9.3 | Nausea, headache, constipation, dizziness, vomiting, and dry mouth |
| Liraglutide | Saxenda | Glucagon-like peptide-1 (GLP-1) receptor agonist | 3 mg | Lower Total cholesterol Lower LDL Lower Triglycerides Higher HDL | 8.4 | Nausea, hypoglycemia, diarrhea, constipation vomiting |

2.4.4 Bariatric Surgery

Recently, bariatric surgery has been showed to cure obesity and obesity related health problems such as diabetes, metabolic syndromes, etc. (19). It is mostly recommended to people who have tried many times and failed of losing weight or weigh gaining recurrently (27).

According to National Institutes of Health at the consensus panel conference in 1991, favorable conditions for bariatric surgery were decided. Body Mass Index (BMI) should be more than 40 kg/m² or 35 kg/m² is eligible if there is a high risk for obesity-related diseases. There should be a team which is consist of health professionals, dieticians, psychologist and exercise physiologists. Patients who decided to have bariatric surgery should be informed in every detail and after surgery they should be closely monitored nutritional, medical and psychological aspects (35).

There are few types of bariatric procedures that they have different ways to treatment obesity. Biliopancreatic Diversion and Duodenal Node may be used to reduce the incidence of food insufficiency, Laparoscopic Adjustable Gastric Banding, Laparoscopic Sleeve Gastrectomy and Roux-Allergic Gastric Resistance Gastric Resection may decrease gastric volume (36).

2.4.5. Traditional and Complementary Medical Applications: Herbal Supports

On October 27, 2014, the Regulation on Traditional and Complementary Medicine was published in the Official Gazette (number: 29158) (37). These methods are acupuncture, apitherapy, phytotherapy, hypnosis, homeopathy, leech application, chiropractic, cup application, larval application, mesotherapy, prolotherapy, osteopathy, ozone application, reflexology, music therapy.

Herbal products are using as supportive of conventional therapy (38). Parts of herbs such as seed, leaf, root, stem, bud, flower are being used to treat many diseases. Also, its aim is maintaining healthy life of people (37).

Since 3000 BC herbal products have been used for the improvement of health. The term of "phytotherapy" is used for the first time in "Le Presse Medical" magazine in 1939. WHO mentioned that, about 70-80% of the world population, basic health care practices include herbal products. In Turkey 32%-72% of the population is using herbal based treatments (37). Despite usage of herbal products are so often, side effects of them are not known well. Because using herbal products consciously, the German Federal

Institute for Drug and Medical Planning and FDA have pointed that serious consequences of uncontrolled usage of herbal products (40). Also, in Turkey Ministry of Health made regulations about herbal products in 2011. In addition, by the 2012, legislative regulations have been made on herbal products in 119 countries all over the world (40).

2.4.5.1. Herbal Supports (Phytotherapy) in the Treatment of Obesity

Programs including moderate calorie restriction and physical exercise have achieved better results than anti-obesity drugs, bariatric surgery and herbal supports. Costs of bariatric surgeries and side effects of anti-obesity drugs make people use herbal products (10). Also people think that 'natural' always means 'safe', and a common belief that remedies from natural origin are harmless and carry no risk that's why herbal support usage became very common and also same study also claims that herbal products are easily available and affordable in low-income countries (41).

2.4.5.1.A. Green Tea

Green tea is found in the family of theaceae. After leaves of Camelia sinesis harvested only drying process is used. Drying process is better than semi-fermented or fermented processes. With the fermentation process there are loss of polyphenols. That's why green tea contains more polyphenols than partly fermented oolong tea or fermented black tea. Asian countries prefer green tea after water which is the most consumed drink. Over a hundred of years Asian people have been aware of the positive effects of green tea on health (42).

According to a study catechins and epigallocatechin gallate (EGCG) in green teas may reduce the weight of adipose tissue (10). Same study claims that the green tea treats obesity by regulating plasma leptin levels which is important communicator between neurons in the hypothalamus for regulating appetite (10).

Recently, the meta-analysis study indicated that the caffeine-EGCG ratio had vital role in weight loss or weight management (43). According to that meta-analysis study consumption of green tea causes significant increase in energy expenditure and fat oxidation by its caffeine-EGCG ratio (43).

A study had been designed to show that green tea has a role in insulin sensitivity (44). It promotes expression of genes of glucose transporter type 4, which takes place in glucose transportation in fat cells (44). At the end, increasing insulin sensitivity helps in weight loss.

There is other clinical trial that also show benefits of green tea on obesity (45). It is observed that people who are in trail lost 3.5-kg in body weight and have a 4.14-cm reduction in WC (45).

Another study has showed that weight loss and lower low-density lipoprotein (LDL) levels (45). Its limitation is unfollowed dietary intake and physical activity levels. Beside limitations, sometimes there are unexpected findings such as no changes among body weight and fat percentage of the participants who are taking green tea extract. According to Huang, J. et al., it may cause by high caffeine intake before the study. Lenon et al studied on herbs which should be combined with green tea for the best weigh loss results (46).

In addition to purpose of using green tea as weight loss it also plays important role as antioxidant, anti-carcinogen and heart protectant (44).

2.4.5.1.B. White Tea

White tea is made by Camelia sinesis which is harvesting too early and its leaves are dried by mist. To protect its white color of young leaves, during the process, sunlight should be avoided (42).

White tea has become a popular beverage due to its taste and health benefits. The most known benefits are: antioxidant, antimicrobial and anticancer, lipolytic effects (42, 47, 48).

According to Karori et al. they showed that white tea has the highest antioxidant activity through 2, 2- diphenyl- 1- picryl- hydrazyl- hydrate solution methods. However, Carloni et al. used another method 2, 2'- azino- bis (3- ethylbenzothiazoline-6- sulphonic acid), oxygen radical absorbance capacity, and LDL particles (49). They found that high catechin content tea has the highest antioxidant activity and green tea has the most. Catechin content was reported to be 1.94 mg/mL in green tea, 0.80 mg/mL in white tea and 0.24 mg/mL in black tea (49).

Kim et al. showed that white tea has the highest caffeine content compared to green tea, black tea and oolong tea (50).

In a review, in vitro study which is done by Mohsen and his colleague concluded as triglyceride incorporation into adipocytes was decreased when human subcutaneous pre-adipocytes incubated with white tea extract during adipogenesis (47). They also mentioned that lipolysis activity was increased in differentiated adipocytes when these

cells were exposed to white tea extract. Another supportive study showed that the lipolytic activity was triggered by white tea extract (48).

Despite the beneficial effects of white tea, here was not enough evidence that white tea is useful for body weight loss. Lílian et al. could not found any differences on body weight, or visceral adiposity through white tea consumed group (51).

Another study demonstrated that white tea, has beneficial effects on blood glucose levels but they couldn't show and effects on body weight (52).

2.4.5.1.C. Mate Tea

Yerba mate named Ilexparaguariensis is in Aquifoliaceae family and grown in South America (53). It contains great numbers of phenolic compounds such as purine alkaloids, flavonoids, tannins, chlorogenic acid and vitamins A, B complex, C, E. When polyphenol levels are compared, mate tea has higher levels than green tea.

A recent study has shown that Yerbamate reduced fat pads. In that study yerba mate inhibited adipogenesis, regulated inflammatory response and increased insulin sensitivity (54).

In a study which is studied on rats, they found no significant differences in blood plasma values and insulin plasma levels between the rats which fed with the yerba mate extract and not fed with yerba mate (control group) (54). But also, they found that yerba mate fluid extract protects against obesity on animals when rats fed with fat rich diets.

A recent search claimed that therapeutic properties of yerba mate on inflammation in some tissues such as hypothalamus, muscle, adipose tissue, and liver. They explained that potential therapeutic effects as presence of phenolic acids in the mate (55).

According to another study, yerba mate may reduce fatty tissue and as a conclusion it helped weight loss in high fat fed rats. According to that study yerba mate increased energy expenditure and fat oxidation. In addition, when they compared blood parameters, they found that plasma insulin and homeostatic model assessment of insulin resistance (HOMA-IR) were elevated in high-fat fed rats (55).

2.4.5.1.D. Black Seed

Black seed, Nigella sativa, belongs to the Ranunculaceae family. It has been used for health and treatment of diseases in many years in the Middle East and Southeast Asia (56). Black seed is composed of proteins, amino acids, carbohydrates, fibers, oils (especially polyunsaturated fatty acids), essential oil, minerals, alkaloids, flavonoids and

saponins. Also, it contains various antioxidant substances including thymoquinone and nigellone (57).

Black seed have been used as anti-microbial, antioxidant, anti-inflammatory, antitumor, hematologic, anti-hypertensive, anti-hypertensive in Southeast Asia, Central and Far East. Also, it has positive effects on health as anti-diabetic, antilipidemic, pituitary and anti-obesity (58).

In a study 100 voluntary obese women were included, they had low-calorie diets and took supplements with black seed. As a conclusion decrease in insulin concentrations and insulin resistance were observed (57).

In the review 13 studies claimed that, using black seed caused decreasing in satiety blood sugar levels in and in HbA1c. 8 of the study claimed that, black seed had a great effect on the weight loss (56).

According to another study it has found that in randomized double-blind pilot study, 123 participants had positive developments on BMI when participants used black seed (59).

2.4.5.1.E. Cinnamon

Cinnamon formerly C. Zeylanicum belongs to Lauraceae family. It is a small tropical tree plnted in Sri Lanka, East and Central Asia (60).

Traditionally, cinnamon has been used to treat of throat or dental problems. Also, it is used as agents as anti-arthritis, antimicrobial, antifungal, antioxidant, anti-inflammatory.

Cinnamon has positive effects on glycemic control in humans and it improves insulin sensitivity (61). Cinnamaldehyde helps to increase glucose uptake into skeletal muscle.

In a study conducted by Hamid Mollazadeh and colleagues cinnamaldehyde reduced food intake and decreased rates of a gastric emptying in rats (60).

Cinnamon is composed of polyphenolic compounds, which has anti-obesogenic effects (60, 62). Liu, Y et al. used a cinnamon extract on overweight or obese pre-diabetic individuals as supplement for four-months. They observed that carnosine which binds to excess glucose in the blood and act as a natural antioxidant has increased in lean mass (62).

In a study it was shown that obese rats which had insulin-resistant, had improvement on insulin sensitivity with cinnamon usage (61). In addition, in the same

study, it has been observed that fat accumulation in the liver was decreased by the cinnamon extract. According to conclusions in that study, it is said that cinnamon may help maintain weight by maintaining glucose levels, not directly makes weight loss (61).

Although cinnamon has positive effects on health and weight, the European Food Safety Association recommended that use of cinnamon should be 0.1 mg / kg (62).

2.4.5.1.F. Flax seed

Flax seed, also known as Linum usitatisimum, is accepted as a functional food that is used for wide range of health benefits. Full seeds, oil and mucilage are different forms of flax seed and they may have different usage purposes (63).

Flax seed is one of the world's most known oilseed crops that major source of alinolenic acid (18: 3; n-3) and is a source of lignan which have many health benefits (64).

Because flax seed has soluble and insoluble fibers, it has been used to treat constipation as a traditional medicine for many years (63).

In a study 27 men participants used flax seed and applied calorie-restricted diet. As a conclusion weight loss was observed. At the same time in flax seed using group had improvement on triglyceride levels and systolic blood pressure (65).

According to another study, which is on rats and it is found an important difference between rats fat with flax seed compared to high fat fad rats. In a group which was fed with flax seed, lost weight and there was also decrease in insulin resistance and blood plasma levels (66).

2.4.5.1.G. Corn Silk

Corn silk known as Zea mays L. is the style and stigma of corn berry, and it is mostly planted in Egypt. Even corn silk is a waste material of corn sowing, it includes polysaccharides, proteins, vitamins, minerals, alkaloids and tannins, as well as steroids.

Corn silk has been used for the treatment of edema, prostatitis and similar health conditions such as cystitis, gout, nephritis, kidney stones, and obesity for many years in Chinese herbal medicines (67, 68).

A pharmacological study which was done by in vitro and in vivo have shown that corn silk had role as antioxidants, hypoglycemia reduction, anti-depressant, anti-fatigue and effective diuretic agent (68).

In another study conducted by Wang, C et al. showed that participants which treated with corn silk had improvement on blood glucose and insulin sensitivity index (ISI) levels. Also corn silk had an important role on hypoglycemia (69).

2.4.5.1.H. Cherry Stalk

According to literature cherry stalk is known as Prunus avium L. Which is a tree from the Rosaceae family. Only health benefits of cherry stalk such as removing renal stones, edema and hypertension, has been reported by Iranian Traditional Medicine. It has reported that mild diuretic effects of cherry stalks may be caused the presence of flavanoid and potassium at high levels (70).

2.4.5.1.I. Ginger

Ginger is a widely used spice, also it is accepted as a functional food. Ginger which takes an important place in Asian medicine has many bioactive substances such as shogaoller, and essential oils containing sesquiterpenes and monoterpenes (71). The most known effects of ginger are anti-arthritic, anti-migraine, anti-thrombotic, antiemetic, antioxidant, angiogenic roles in the body. However, ginger has the beneficial effects of health, in various studies have shown that it helps to treat obesity, metabolic syndrome and diabetes (71-73).

A study demonstrated that ginger may help rats to reduce body fat while they fed with a high fat diet. Even rats continued to feed a high fat diet, ginger supplement also reduced levels of glucose and insulin. At the same time serum total cholesterol, low density lipoprotein cholesterol, triacylglycerol, free fatty acids and phospholipids were decreased (72).

According to a study 80 healthy obese women had took 2 grams of ginger powder for 12 weeks. At the end BMI, serum insulin and HOMA-IR index were significantly reduced when compared to placebo group (72).

Another study, rodents fed with high fat diet took extra ginger supplements. As a conclusion they had significantly lower weight gain, fat accumulation, and leptin levels compared to control group (73).

2.4.5.1.J. Turmeric

Turmeric is a source of curcumin which is a strong polyphenol and it has been used in oriental cuisine as a yellow pigment, coloring and aroma for many years. The first

report on the effect of curcumin on human illness was published 80 years ago in The Lancet (47).

Rao et al. reported that rats fed with curcumin supplementation at 500-1000 mg / kg dose helped to decrease in weight gain after 4 weeks. Also, liver cholesterol, triglyceride and free fatty acid levels were decreased, and bile acid excretion was increased (74).

In vitro, in vivo or clinically anti-inflammatory, antioxidant, anti-carcinogenic, anti-aging, anti-infectious, neuro-protective and curcumin protective effects of turmeric have been studied (74).

According to research, curcumin which is polyphenol, had hypoglycemic effect in the liver of obese mice and it regulated the hepatic glucose production and energy production (71).

Jimenez Osorio, A. S. et al. analyzed the experimental and clinical studies in their review. The data showed us how turmeric is reducing insulin resistance and comorbidities such as obesity, prediabetes, diabetes and metabolic syndrome. According to that review turmeric regulates lipid metabolism insulin pathways and reduces metabolic stress and inflammation (74).

3. MATERIAL AND METHOD

3.1. Participants

During May-June-July in 2017 people who visited polyclinics of nutrition and dietetics department of Acıbadem Bakırköy Hospital were asked to participate in the study. 150 people accepted to take the survey. 17 of the participants were excluded from the study because they were diagnosed as diabetes, renal failure, epilepsy, cancer, hypothyroid, hypertension, neuropathy or multiple sclerosis. Of the 133 participants who completed the study and had no diagnosed disease other than obesity, 100 were women and 33 were men.

3.2. Data Collection

The questionnaire form (Appendix 1) which was filled with face to face interview method. Questionnaire form composed of general information about participants (age, sex, education levels, etc.), body mass index, waist circumference (cm), diagnosed diseases, used medicines, difficulties in losing weight, and their usage of herbal supplements, buying patterns, etc. Answers were shown in the findings part. WC (cm) of the participants were measured the point of 2 cm above the umbilicus. Weight measurement was made by weighing device. BMI of participants were calculated according to WHO classifications (16).

3.3. Statistical Analysis

SPSS v22.0 was used for statistical analysis. Tests used: i. frequency analysis, ii. descriptive statistics analysis, iii. chi-square analysis, iv. independent group comparisons (independent t test) and v. correlation. Descriptive statistics such as frequency, arithmetic mean, standard deviation, minimum, maximum, frequency, percentage were used in the analysis of the data. The parametric statistical analysis was used in our data set. Independent t-test was used to compare the mean values of 2 independent groups. Pearson correlation coefficient was calculated for correlation analysis. Some of the questions had more than one choice. Also open-ended questions were asked to participants. That's why some statistical analyses could not be calculated over 100%.

3.4. Ethical Approval

For the research, ethical approval was obtained from Acıbadem University Clinical Research Ethics Committee on 06.04.2017. With the decision number 2017-6/8 this study is ethically and scientifically appropriated to conduct (Appendix 2).

4. FINDINGS

Of the 133 people who completed the study, 75% were women, 25% were men, mean age of the participants was $36.5(\pm 9.76)$. Minimum age was 22 and maximum age was 64. Mean weight was $79.2 \text{ kg} (\pm 12.95)$, mean height was $166.9(\pm 7.71)$ cm and mean BMI was calculated as $28.3 \text{kg/m}^2(\pm 3.55)$. Mean waist circumferences of participants are shown in table 4.1. WC (cm) values of women participating in the study significantly differ between herbal supplement users. (t:2,3655; p: $0.000 \le 0.05$). Average waist circumference value of women using herbal supplement (94,9cm ± 12.7) was higher than the mean WC of women who do not use herbal supplement (86,8 ± 9.2). Similarly, the mean WC (cm) values of the men participating in the study significantly differ according to the use of herbal supplements (t: 2,127; p: $0.041 \le 0.05$). Mean WC value of men using herbal supplements (106,8cm ± 10.0) are higher than the mean WC value of men who do not use herbal supplement (98,9cm ± 10.9).

Table 4.1. Comparison of herbal supplement usage between men and women with mean waist circumferences

| | D 6 1 | | Wais | st circumfe | rence (cm) | |
|-------|------------------------------------|---------------------------|-------|-------------|------------|-------|
| Sex | Preferring herbal supplement | Number of people(n) | Mean | S.S. | t | p* |
| Women | Yes | 50 | 94,9 | 12,7 | 2 655 | ,000* |
| women | No | 50 | 86,8 | 9,2 | 3,655 | ,000* |
| Men | Yes | 14 | 106,8 | 10,0 | 2 127 | 0.41* |
| | No | 19 | 98,9 | 10,9 | 2,127 ,0 | ,041* |

^{*}p≤0,05 is accepted as statistically significance.

When the educational status is evaluated; 1.5% of the participants were graduated from primary school, 4% were graduated from secondary school, 31.5% were graduated from high school, 51% were graduated from bachelor's degree and 12% stated that they were graduated from PhD programs. There was no significant relationship between the educational status and the use of herbal supplements in the study participants. χ^2 :6,186; p:0,143>0,05) (table 4.2).

On the other hand, 3% of the people who use herbal supplement were graduated from primary school, 2% were graduated from secondary school, 39% were graduated from high school, 45% of them had their bachelor's degree and 11% were PhD graduates.

6% of those who do not use herbal supplement were graduated from secondary school, 25% were graduated from high school, 57% were undergraduate and 13% of them completed PhD programs.

Table 4.2. Comparison of herbal supplement usage according to educational status

| | | Preferring herbal supplement | | | 2 | P* |
|-------------------|----|------------------------------|----|------|-----------|-------|
| | | Yes | N | Vo | $-\chi^2$ | P |
| Education level | n | % | n | % | _ | |
| Primary School | 2 | 3,0 | 0 | 0,0 | | |
| Secondary School | 1 | 2,0 | 4 | 6,0 | | |
| High School | | 39,0 | 17 | 25,0 | 6,186 | 0,143 |
| Bachelor's degree | 29 | 45,0 | 39 | 57,0 | | |
| Postgraduate | 7 | 11,0 | 9 | 13,0 | | |

^{*} $p \le 0.05$ is accepted as statistically significance.

It is founded that; eighty-eight of 133 people believe that herbal supplements are effective in weight loss control. However, 16 of these 80 people mentioned that they prefer not to use it, even though they think that herbal supplements work (table 4.3). They reasoned it that: there is no need to be consumed by healthy people, I do not have enough knowledge, I think my diet is enough to lose weight, not easily accessible. In addition, all the people who did not think that herbal supplements were effective also not using herbal supplements.

Table 4.3. Comparison of the usage of herbal supplements among beliefs on benefits on health

| | Preferring Herbal Supplement | | | |
|---|------------------------------|------|----|-------|
| | Yes | S | I | No |
| Herbal supplement helps to improve my health (consumers idea) | n | % | n | % |
| Yes | 64 | 80,0 | 16 | 20,0 |
| No | 0 | 0,0 | 53 | 100,0 |

48% of 133 participants who completed the study stated that they used herbal supplements for weight loss or weight control and 52% were not using any kind of herbal supplements (table 4.4). When the reasons of those who do not use herbal supplements are evaluated they were as; I do not have enough knowledge, not useful, I think it is harmful, not easily accessible, there is no need to be consumed by healthy people, I think my diet is enough to weight loss (table 4.5). Because each participant could choose more than one reason; in the table 4.5 total percentage is not equal to 100.

Table 4.4. Use of herbal supplements

| Use of herbal supplements | n | % |
|---------------------------|----|------|
| Yes | 64 | 48,0 |
| No | 69 | 52,0 |

Table 4.5. Reasons why participants do not use herbal supplements

| The reason why they do not use herbal supplements for weight loss control | n | % |
|---|----|------|
| I do not have enough knowledge | 18 | 27,0 |
| Not useful | 8 | 12,0 |
| I think it is harmful | 12 | 18,0 |
| Not easily accessible | 3 | 4,0 |
| There is no need to be consumed by healthy people | 19 | 28,0 |
| I think my diet is enough to weight loss | 18 | 27,0 |

There was a significant relationship between the use of herbal supplements and chronic constipation (x^2 :4,992; p:0,025 \leq 0,05) (table 4.6). Of the 133 people, 24 had chronic constipation and 109 did not have any chronic constipation. It was found that 27% of the people using herbal supplements had chronic constipation, and 10% of people who did not use herbal supplement had chronic constipation.

Table 4.6. Comparison of herbal supplement preferences according to chronic constipation status

| | | Preferring Herbal Supplement | | | · γ ² | D* |
|----------------------|----------|------------------------------|----|------|------------------|--------|
| | <u> </u> | Yes No | | χ | P** | |
| Chronic Constipation | n | % | n | % | | |
| Yes | 17 | 27,0 | 7 | 10,0 | 4.002 | 0.025* |
| No | 47 | 73,0 | 62 | 90,0 | 4,992 | 0,025* |

^{*}p≤0,05 is accepted as statistically significance.

50.4% of the participants stated that they had difficulty in weight loss and 49.6% stated that they were having difficulties to lose weight. People who have mentioned that they have difficulty in weight loss listed the reasons as, respectively; improper food preference, increased appetite, lack of physical activity, decreased metabolic rate, inconsistent meal times, gastrointestinal problems, lack of motivation, busy schedule, lack of nutritional information, night eating, have no idea about herbal supplements, disease, and insufficient water drinking (Table 4.7).

Table 4.7. Believes on difficulties in losing weight and their reasons

| Difficulties in losing weight | (n) | % |
|---------------------------------------|-----|------|
| Yes | 67 | 50,4 |
| No | 66 | 49,6 |
| Reason | | |
| Improper food preference | 12 | 18,0 |
| Increased appetite | 11 | 17,0 |
| Lack of physical activity | 9 | 13,6 |
| Decreased metabolic rate | 8 | 12,0 |
| Inconsistent mealtimes | 7 | 10,6 |
| Gastrointestinal problems | 6 | 9,0 |
| Lack of motivation | 5 | 7,6 |
| Busy Schedule | 3 | 4,5 |
| Lack of nutritional information | 1 | 1,5 |
| Night eating | 1 | 1,5 |
| Have no idea about herbal supplements | 1 | 1,5 |
| Disease | 1 | 1,5 |
| Lack of drinking water | 1 | 1,5 |

There is a significant relationship between the use of herbal supplements and their believes on having difficulties in weight loss (χ^2 : 3,996; p:0,046 \leq 0,05) (table 4.8). 59% of people who use herbal supplement think that they have difficulties in weight loss, 41% stated that it is not hard to lose weight; 42% of those who did not use herbal supplement stated that it is not hard to lose weight and 58% stated that they had difficulties.

Table 4.8. Comparison of herbal supplement usage according to the difficulty in weight loss

| | Usage of herbal supplement | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|----------------------------|------|----|------|----------|--------|
| | Y | es | N | o | χ^2 | P* |
| Difficulty in losing weight | n | % | n | % | | |
| Yes | 38 | 59,0 | 29 | 42,0 | 2.006 | 0.046* |
| No | 26 | 41,0 | 40 | 58,0 | 3,996 | 0,046* |

^{*}p≤0,05 is accepted as statistically significance.

11% of the participants stated that they have used herbal supplement and 89% of the participants have never used them. When we analyzed 64 participants with herbal supplement use among themselves, the most preferred herb was cinnamon (%86). The use of herbal supplements respectively were cinnamon (81%), green tea (81%), ginger (59%), black seed (52%), flax seed (31%), cherry stalk (25%), white tea (23%), turmeric (%) 23), mate tea (16%) and corn silk(9%) (table 4.9). According to answers; single participant may use more than one herbal supplement.

Table 4.9. Herbal Supplement Preference

| Herbs | n | % |
|--------------|----|------|
| Cinnamon | 55 | 86,0 |
| Green tea | 52 | 81,0 |
| Ginger | 38 | 59,0 |
| Black Seed | 33 | 52,0 |
| Flaxseed | 20 | 31,0 |
| Cherry Stalk | 16 | 25,0 |
| White Tea | 15 | 23,0 |
| Turmeric | 15 | 23,0 |
| Mate tea | 10 | 16,0 |
| Corn silk | 6 | 9.0 |

Intended use of cinnamon, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the cinnamon are shown in the table 4.10. respectively.

Table 4.10. Cinnamon

| Edema 11 20,0 Decreasing fat mass /weight loss 14 25,0 Gastrointestinal problems 4 7,0 Gas problems 5 9,0 Feeling of fullness 47 85,0 Other 6 11,0 Common usage of Cinnamon Dinner 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Infusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 | Aim of using cinnamon | n | % |
|--|-------------------------------------|----|------|
| Gastrointestinal problems 4 7,0 Gas problems 5 9,0 Feeling of fullness 47 85,0 Other 6 11,0 Common usage of Cinnamon Dinner 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Înfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 7 44 Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 7 | Edema | 11 | 20,0 |
| Gas problems 5 9,0 Feeling of fullness 47 85,0 Other 6 11,0 Common usage of Cinnamon Dinner 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Infusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 1 2,0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Internet 25 46,0 | Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 14 | 25,0 |
| Feeling of fullness 47 85,0 Other 6 11,0 Common usage of Cinnamon | Gastrointestinal problems | 4 | 7,0 |
| Other 6 11,0 Common usage of Cinnamon 78,0 Dinner 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage 8 15,0 Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ İnfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 1 in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 21 38,0 2 2 imas in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 11 2,0 1 1 2,0 Market 35 65,0 1 1 2,0 1 Market 37 69,0 2 4 44,0 2 4 44,0 2 4 44,0 2 4 <td< td=""><td>Gas problems</td><td>5</td><td>9,0</td></td<> | Gas problems | 5 | 9,0 |
| Common usage of Cinnamon 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage 8 Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ İnfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 21 38,0 2 times in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 1 2,5 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0< | Feeling of fullness | 47 | 85,0 |
| Dinner 43 78,0 Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ İnfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 1 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 27 50,0 Internet 25 <td< td=""><td>Other</td><td>6</td><td>11,0</td></td<> | Other | 6 | 11,0 |
| Tea 33 60,0 Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ İnfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 11 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 24 44,0 Packaged 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recomme | Common usage of Cinnamon | | |
| Other 8 15,0 Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Infusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 11 38,0 21 38,0 22 38,0 21 38,0 22 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 8 14,5 Purchase pattern of cinnamon from 35 65,0 65,0 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 24 44,0 24 44,0 24 24 44,0 24 25 | Dinner | 43 | 78,0 |
| Preparation cinnamon to usage Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Infusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 0 0 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation <t< td=""><td>Tea</td><td>33</td><td>60,0</td></t<> | Tea | 33 | 60,0 |
| Boiling /Decoction 12 22,0 Brewing/ Infusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 0 0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 0 0 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference <t< td=""><td>Other</td><td>8</td><td>15,0</td></t<> | Other | 8 | 15,0 |
| Brewing/ Ínfusion 20 36,0 Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Preparation cinnamon to usage | | |
| Grinding 16 29,0 Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from | Boiling /Decoction | 12 | 22,0 |
| Using as it is 41 75,0 Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from | Brewing/ İnfusion | 20 | 36,0 |
| Frequency of use cinnamon 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from | Grinding | 16 | 29,0 |
| 1 time in a day 21 38,0 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Using as it is | 41 | 75,0 |
| 2 times in a day 6 11,0 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Frequency of use cinnamon | | |
| 3 times in a day 3 5,5 More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | 1 time in a day | 21 | 38,0 |
| More than 3 in a day 17 31,0 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 0 0 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | 2 times in a day | 6 | 11,0 |
| 2-3 days in a week/month 8 14,5 Purchasing cinnamon from 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 0 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 29,0 Yes 49 91,0 | 3 times in a day | 3 | 5,5 |
| Purchasing cinnamon from Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | More than 3 in a day | 17 | 31,0 |
| Herbalist 35 65,0 Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | 2-3 days in a week/month | 8 | 14,5 |
| Internet 1 2,0 Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | Purchasing cinnamon from | | |
| Market 37 69,0 Purchase pattern of cinnamon 24 44,0 Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Herbalist | 35 | 65,0 |
| Purchase pattern of cinnamon Unpacked 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Internet | 1 | 2,0 |
| Unpacked Packaged 24 44,0 Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | Market | 37 | 69,0 |
| Packaged 38 70,0 Learning about cinnamon from 27 50,0 TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Purchase pattern of cinnamon | | |
| Learning about cinnamon from TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Unpacked | 24 | 44,0 |
| TV 27 50,0 Internet 25 46,0 Medical stuff 33 61,0 Magazine/newspaper 18 33,0 Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference 49 91,0 | Packaged | 38 | 70,0 |
| Internet2546,0Medical stuff3361,0Magazine/newspaper1833,0Friend recommendation3259,0Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference2549Yes4991,0 | Learning about cinnamon from | | |
| Medical stuff3361,0Magazine/newspaper1833,0Friend recommendation3259,0Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference4991,0 | TV | 27 | 50,0 |
| Magazine/newspaper1833,0Friend recommendation3259,0Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference2Yes4991,0 | Internet | 25 | 46,0 |
| Friend recommendation 32 59,0 Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | Medical stuff | 33 | 61,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from cinnamon preference Yes 49 91,0 | Magazine/newspaper | 18 | 33,0 |
| <u>cinnamon preference</u> Yes 49 91,0 | Friend recommendation | 32 | 59,0 |
| Yes 49 91,0 | Believes about getting benefit from | | _ |
| • | cinnamon preference | | |
| No 5 9,0 | Yes | 49 | 91,0 |
| | No | 5 | 9,0 |

Cinnamon which is the most preferred herbal supplement by the participants, has been determined as feeling of fullness. Other option refers to: flavor of cinnamon, believes in reduction in insulin resistance, and providing blood sugar regulation. Participants used cinnamon as most food / spice. Other refers to: participants use cinnamon in water. 75% of cinnamon users use cinnamon as it is. Those who use cinnamon once a day for 38% and more than 3 times a day are 31%. Although we see that cinnamon is provided from the mostly markets, there are 65% of participants buy cinnamon from herbalists. 70% of the participants who use cinnamon prefer to buy packaged while 44% buy unpacked. Doctor or dietitian is one of the sources affect participants to use cinnamon.

Intended use of green tea, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the green tea are shown in the table 4.11. respectively.

Table 4.11. Green Tea

| Aim of using green tea | n | % |
|---|----|-------|
| Edema | 34 | 65,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 37 | 71,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 12 | 23,0 |
| Gas problems | 2 | 4,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 19 | 37,0 |
| Other | 2 | 4,0 |
| Common usage of Green Tea | | |
| As tea | 52 | 100,0 |
| Preparation green tea to usage | n | % |
| Boiling(decoction) | 5 | 10,0 |
| Brewing(infusion) | 47 | 90,0 |
| Frequency to use Green Tea | | |
| Once in a day | 24 | 46,0 |
| Twice in a day | 16 | 31,0 |
| Three times in a day | 7 | 13,0 |
| More than 3 in a day | 5 | 10,0 |
| Purchasing Green Tea from | | |
| Pharmacy | 2 | 4,0 |
| Herbalist | 22 | 42,0 |
| Internet | 1 | 2,0 |
| Market | 37 | 71,0 |
| Preference to purchase green tea as | | |
| Unpacked | 22 | 42,00 |
| Packaged | 35 | 67,00 |
| Learning about green tea from | | |
| TV | 17 | 33,0 |
| Internet | 24 | 47,0 |
| Medical stuff | 28 | 55,0 |
| Magazine / Newspaper | 12 | 24,0 |
| Friend, Family advise | 17 | 33,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from Green Tea | - | |
| Yes | 48 | 94,0 |
| No | 3 | 6,0 |

The results show that participants use green tea because they think that green tea helps losing fat mass. 90% of green tea consumers use the method of brewing. Green tea is mainly shown by the results using 1 or 2 times per day. Majority of participants buy it from the market and prefer in packages. 55% of the green tea users are recommended by doctor / dietician. But the number of people who are affected by internet is 47%. As a

result of the analysis, the number of people who benefit from the use of green tea is 94%, while the number of people who do not benefit is 6%.

Intended use of ginger, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the ginger are shown in the table 4.12 respectively.

Table 4.12. Ginger

| Aim of using Ginger | n | % |
|--|----|-------|
| Edema | 17 | 47,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 17 | 47,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 8 | 22,0 |
| Gas | 7 | 19,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 13 | 36,0 |
| Other | 4 | 11,0 |
| Common usage areas of Ginger | | |
| Dinner | 28 | 74,0 |
| As tea | 29 | 76,0 |
| Preparing Ginger for use | | |
| Boiling (decoction) | 12 | 32,0 |
| Brewing (infusion) | 24 | 63,0 |
| Grinding | 13 | 34,0 |
| Use as it is | 16 | 42,0 |
| Other | 1 | 3,0 |
| Frequency to consume Ginger | | |
| Once in a day | 29 | 76,3 |
| Twice in a day | 7 | 18,4 |
| 2-3 days in a week / month | 2 | 5,3 |
| Purchasing Ginger from | | |
| Herbalist | 19 | 50,0 |
| Internet | 2 | 5,0 |
| Market | 25 | 66,0 |
| Purchase pattern of Ginger | | |
| Unpacked | 29 | 76,0 |
| Packaged | 13 | 34,0 |
| Learning about Ginger from | | |
| TV | 18 | 47,0 |
| Internet | 20 | 53,0 |
| Medical stuff | 24 | 63,0 |
| Magazine / newspaper | 9 | 24,0 |
| Friend or Family advise | 18 | 47,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from Ginger | | |
| consumption | | |
| Yes | 38 | 100,0 |

When the results are examined, the participants are used with the idea that ginger is decreasing fat mass /weight loss and for edema. There was not much difference between the use of ginger as a spice and tea. It is prepared for use mostly infusion. The results show that ginger was used predominantly once a day. It has been shown that ginger users buy ginger in the market mostly unpacked. With the advice of doctor / dietician, the number of people using ginger is the majority. All the ginger users think that they benefit from ginger.

Intended use of black seed, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the black seed are shown in the table 4.13 respectively.

Table 4.13. Black seed

| Aim of using Black Seed | n | % | |
|--|----|-------|--|
| Edema | 10 | 30,0 | |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 10 | 30,0 | |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 24 | 73,0 | |
| Gas | 5 | 15,0 | |
| Feeling of fullness | 11 | 33,0 | |
| Common usage areas of Black Seed | | | |
| Dinner | 33 | 100,0 | |
| As tea | 2 | 6,0 | |
| Preparation of Black Seed to usage | | | |
| Brewing (infusion) | 1 | 3,0 | |
| Graining | 7 | 22,0 | |
| Consuming as it is | 28 | 88,0 | |
| Frequency to consume Black Sesame | | | |
| Once in a day | 17 | 52,0 | |
| Twice in a day | 5 | 15,0 | |
| Three times in a day | 1 | 3,0 | |
| 2-3 days in a week/month | 10 | 30,0 | |
| Purchasing Black Sesame from | | | |
| Herbalist | 15 | 45,0 | |
| Market | 26 | 79,0 | |
| Preference to purchase Black Sesame as | | | |
| Unpacked | 11 | 33,0 | |
| Packaged | 27 | 82,0 | |
| Learning about Black Sesame from | | | |
| TV | 15 | 45,0 | |
| Internet | 10 | 30,0 | |
| Medical stuff | 23 | 70,0 | |
| Magazine / newspaper | 7 | 21,0 | |
| Friend or Family advise | 14 | 42,0 | |
| Believes about getting benefit from | | _ | |
| Ginger consumption | | | |
| Yes | 31 | 94,0 | |
| No | 2 | 6,0 | |

When the results of the questionnaire are examined, the participants are used because they think that the black seed is the most intestinal function regulator. The use of black seed 100% food / spice was found. Black seed is prepared for use without any processing, by the majority. When the frequency of use of black seed is considered, it is shown that the maximum use is once a day. Most black seed users buy it from the market and packaged. With the recommendation of a doctor / dietician, the number of people

who prefer black seed is more common. 96% of the users were satisfied with the results of the black seed.

Intended use of flaxseed, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the flaxseed are shown in the table 4.14. respectively.

Table 4.14. Flaxseed

| Aim of using Flaxseed | n | % |
|-------------------------------------|----|-------|
| Edema | 3 | 15,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 4 | 20,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 16 | 80,0 |
| Gas problems | 1 | 5,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 10 | 50,0 |
| Common usage areas of Flaxseed | | |
| Dinner | 20 | 100,0 |
| Preparing Flaxseed for use | | |
| Graining | 12 | 40,0 |
| Consuming as it is | 41 | 80,0 |
| Frequency to consume Flaxseed | | |
| Once in a day | 16 | 80,0 |
| Twice in a day | 2 | 10,0 |
| 2-3 days in a week/month | 2 | 10,0 |
| Purchasing Flaxseed from | | |
| Pharmacy | 1 | 5,0 |
| Herbalist | 10 | 50,0 |
| Market | 13 | 65,0 |
| Preference to purchase Flaxseed as | | |
| Unpacked | 7 | 35,0 |
| Packaged | 15 | 75,0 |
| Learning about Flaxseed from | | |
| TV | 10 | 50,0 |
| Internet | 9 | 45,0 |
| Medical stuff | 15 | 75,0 |
| Magazine / newspaper | 6 | 30,0 |
| Friend or Family advise | 8 | 40,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from | | |
| Flaxseed consumption | | |
| Yes | 19 | 95,0 |
| No | 1 | 5,0 |

When the results of the questionnaire are examined, the intention of use of flex seed seems mostly gastrointestinal problems. The use of flaxseed was analyzed 100% as food / spice. Flaxseed is prepared for use without any processing, by the majority. When the frequency of use of flaxseed is considered, it is shown that the maximum use is once a day. Most flaxseed users buy it from the market and packaged. With the recommendation of a doctor / dietician, the number of people who prefer flaxseed is more common. 95% of the users were satisfied with the results of the black seed.

Intended use of cherry stalk, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the cherry stalk are shown in the table 4.15. respectively.

Table 4.15. Cherry Stalk

| Aim of using Cherry Stalk | n | % |
|--|----|-------|
| Edema | 15 | 94,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 5 | 31,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 2 | 13,0 |
| Common usage areas of Cherry Stalk | | |
| Dinner | 1 | 6,0 |
| As tea | 16 | 100,0 |
| Preparing Cherry Stalk for use | | |
| Boiling (decoction) | 5 | 31,0 |
| Brewing (infusion) | 10 | 63,0 |
| Consuming as it is | 1 | 6,0 |
| Frequency to consume Cherry Stalk | | |
| Once in a day | 8 | 50,0 |
| Twice in a day | 1 | 6,0 |
| More than 3 in a day | 1 | 6,0 |
| 2-3 days in a week/month | 6 | 38,0 |
| Purchasing Cherry Stalk from | | |
| Herbalist | 8 | 50,0 |
| Market | 8 | 50,0 |
| Other | 3 | 19,0 |
| Preference to purchase Cherry Stalk as | | |
| Open | 10 | 63,0 |
| Packaged | 9 | 56,0 |
| As Supplement (tablet) | 1 | 6,0 |
| Learning about Cherry Stalk from | | |
| TV | 5 | 31,0 |
| Internet | 6 | 38,0 |
| Medical stuff | 5 | 31,0 |
| Magazine / newspaper | 3 | 19,0 |
| Friend or Family advise 6 | | 38,0 |
| Believes about getting from Cherry Stalk | | |
| consumption | | |
| Yes | 12 | 75,0 |
| No | 4 | 25,0 |

When the results of the survey were analyzed; participants use the cherry stalk for what they think it if for edema. The use of the cherry stalk was 100% tea. Widely used by brewing. When the frequency of the use of cherry stem is examined, it is shown that the maximum use is 1 time per day. Cherry stalk users buy it from both market and herbalists. Internet and friends, parents, neighboring advices have been identified as the most influential sources for the use of cherry stalk. 75% of the users reported that they benefited from the use of the cherry stalk.

Intended use of white tea, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting or not from the white tea are shown in the table 4.16. respectively.

Table 4.16. White Tea

| Edema 12 80,0 Decreasing fat mass /weight loss 9 60,0 Gastrointestinal Disorders 3 20,0 Gas 4 27,0 Feeling of fullness 4 27,0 Other 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption 80iling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 0nce in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 | Aim of using White Tea | n | % |
|--|-------------------------------------|----|-------|
| Gastrointestinal Disorders 3 20,0 Gas 4 27,0 Feeling of fullness 4 27,0 Other 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption Boiling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from Herbalist 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about get | Edema | 12 | 80,0 |
| Gas 4 27,0 Feeling of fullness 4 27,0 Other 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea 15 100,0 As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption 80iling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 0nce in a day 2 13,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 9 | 60,0 |
| Feeling of fullness 4 27,0 Other 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea 15 100,0 As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption 800,0 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Gastrointestinal Disorders | 3 | 20,0 |
| Other 1 7,0 Common usage areas of White Tea 15 100,0 As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 0nce in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 1 73,0 1 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 1 TV 5 33,0 1 Medical stuff 5 33,0 1 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 1 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 1 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption 13 87,0 | Gas | 4 | 27,0 |
| Common usage areas of White Tea As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption 3 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 3 87,0 Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Feeling of fullness | 4 | 27,0 |
| As tea 15 100,0 Preparing White Tea for consumption Boiling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from Herbalist 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 | Other | 1 | 7,0 |
| Preparing White Tea for consumption Boiling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea 0nce in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Common usage areas of White Tea | | |
| Boiling(decoction) 2 13,0 Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 11 73,0 Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | As tea | 15 | 100,0 |
| Brewing (infusion) 13 87,0 Frequency to consume White Tea Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Preparing White Tea for consumption | | |
| Frequency to consume White Tea Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Packaged 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Boiling(decoction) | 2 | 13,0 |
| Once in a day 13 87,0 Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Packaged 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Brewing (infusion) | 13 | 87,0 |
| Twice in a day 2 13,0 Purchasing White Tea from 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Frequency to consume White Tea | | |
| Purchasing White Tea from Herbalist 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Once in a day | 13 | 87,0 |
| Herbalist 4 29,0 Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Twice in a day | 2 | 13,0 |
| Market 11 79,0 Preference to purchase White Tea as 4 27,0 Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Purchasing White Tea from | | |
| Preference to purchase White Tea as Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Herbalist | 4 | 29,0 |
| Unpacked 4 27,0 Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 70 TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Market | 11 | 79,0 |
| Packaged 11 73,0 Learning about White Tea from 5 33,0 TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Preference to purchase White Tea as | | |
| Learning about White Tea from TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Unpacked | 4 | 27,0 |
| TV 5 33,0 Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Packaged | 11 | 73,0 |
| Internet 11 73,0 Medical stuff 5 33,0 Magazine / newspaper 2 13,0 Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Learning about White Tea from | | |
| Medical stuff533,0Magazine / newspaper213,0Friend or Family advise17,0Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumptionVes1387,0 | TV | 5 | 33,0 |
| Magazine / newspaper213,0Friend or Family advise17,0Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumptionVes1387,0 | Internet | 11 | 73,0 |
| Friend or Family advise 1 7,0 Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Medical stuff | 5 | 33,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from White Tea consumption Yes 13 87,0 | Magazine / newspaper | 2 | 13,0 |
| White Tea consumptionYes1387,0 | Friend or Family advise | 1 | 7,0 |
| White Tea consumptionYes1387,0 | Believes about getting benefit from | | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | White Tea consumption | | |
| No 2 13.0 | Yes | 13 | 87,0 |
| | No | 2 | 13,0 |

According to the results of the survey; participants use white tea because they mostly think it helps for edema. White tea is preferred as tea by all users. It is used as brewed by all participants. When the usage of white tea is examined, it is shown that the maximum use is once a day. Most white tea users buy mate tea from markets and

packaged. Internet is the most influential sources for the use of white tea. 87% of the users reported that they benefited from the use of the white tea.

Intended use of turmeric, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the turmeric are shown in the table 4.17 respectively.

Table 4.17 Turmeric

| Aim of using Turmeric | n | % |
|---|--|---|
| Edema | 4 | 27,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 9 | 60,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 5 | 33,0 |
| Gas | 1 | 7,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 5 | 33,0 |
| Other | 4 | 27,0 |
| Common usage of Turmeric | | |
| Dinner | 11 | 73,0 |
| As tea | 2 | 13,0 |
| Other | 3 | 20,0 |
| Preparing Turmeric for consumption | | |
| Brewing (infusion) | 1 | 7,0 |
| Graining | 7 | 47,0 |
| Consuming as it is | 6 | 40,0 |
| Other | 2 | 13,0 |
| Frequency to consume Turmeric | | |
| Once in a day | 8 | 53,0 |
| Twice in a day | 3 | 20,0 |
| 2-3 days in a week/month | 4 | 27,0 |
| | | |
| Purchasing Turmeric from | | |
| | 3 | 20,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from | 3 10 | |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy | | 20,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist | 10 | 20,0 67,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet | 10 1 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market | 10 1 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as | 10 1 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked | 10 1 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged | 10 1 5 9 6 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) | 10 1 5 9 6 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from | 10 1 5 9 6 2 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV | 10 1 5 9 6 2 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet Medical stuff | 10 1 5 9 6 2 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet | 10 1 5 9 6 2 6 6 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 40,0 40,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet Medical stuff Magazine / newspaper | 10 1 5 9 6 2 6 6 5 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 40,0 40,0 33,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet Medical stuff Magazine / newspaper Friend or Family advise | 10 1 5 9 6 2 6 6 5 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 40,0 40,0 33,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet Medical stuff Magazine / newspaper Friend or Family advise Believes about getting benefit from | 10 1 5 9 6 2 6 6 5 5 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 40,0 40,0 33,0 33,0 |
| Purchasing Turmeric from Pharmacy Herbalist Internet Market Preference to purchase Turmeric as Unpacked Packaged As Supplement(tablet) Learning about Turmeric from TV Internet Medical stuff Magazine / newspaper Friend or Family advise Believes about getting benefit from Turmeric consumption | 10 1 5 9 6 2 6 6 5 5 4 | 20,0 67,0 7,0 33,0 60,0 40,0 13,0 40,0 40,0 33,0 33,0 27,0 |

According to the results of the survey; The participants use the turmeric because they think it is useful for decreasing fat mass /weight loss. Most Turmeric users prefer to use it as a spice / curry grinder. It is used as milled by majority. When the frequency of use is shown, it is shown that the maximum use is once a day. Most Turmeric users prefer

to purchase it from herbalists and prefer it unpackaged. 3 people who are using it in supplement form stated that they bought it from the pharmacy. The number of people who prefer turmeric is influenced by internet and television is significantly high. 80% of the users reported that they benefit from the use of turmeric.

Intended use of mate tea, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the mate tea are shown in the table 4.18. respectively.

Table 4.18. Mate Tea

| Aim of using Mate Tea | n | % |
|-------------------------------------|---|-------|
| Edema | 5 | 56,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 6 | 67,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 1 | 11,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 1 | 11,0 |
| Common usage areas of Mate Tea | | |
| As tea | 9 | 100,0 |
| Preparing Mate Tea for consumption | | |
| Boiling (decoction) | 1 | 11,0 |
| Brewing (infusion) | 9 | 100,0 |
| Frequency of use Mate Tea | | |
| Once in a day | 9 | 100,0 |
| Purchasing Mate Tea from | | |
| Pharmacy | 1 | 11,0 |
| Herbalist | 8 | 89,0 |
| Market | 2 | 22,0 |
| Purchase pattern of Mate Tea | | |
| Unpacked | 7 | 78,0 |
| Packaged | 4 | 44,0 |
| Learning about Mate Tea from | | |
| TV | 2 | 22,0 |
| Internet | 5 | 56,0 |
| Medical stuff | 3 | 33,0 |
| Magazine / newspaper | 1 | 11,0 |
| Friend or Family advise | 4 | 44,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from | | |
| Mate Tea consumption | | |
| Yes | 7 | 70,0 |
| No | 3 | 30,0 |

According to the results of the survey; participants use mate tea because they think it is the most successful Decreasing fat mass /weight loss. Mate tea is preferred as tea by all users. It is used as brewed by all participants. When the usage of Mate tea is examined, it is shown that the maximum use is once a day. Most Mate tea users buy mate tea from herbalist and buy it unpackaged. The number of people who prefer mate tea is influenced by the Internet.70% of the users reported that they benefited from the use of Mate tea.

Intended use of corn silk, usage areas, preparation for consumption, frequency of use, places to purchase, purchase pattern, taking preferences, believes about getting benefit or not from the corn silk are shown in the table 4.19. respectively.

Table 4.19. Corn Silk

| Aim of using Corn Silk | n | % |
|-------------------------------------|---|-------|
| Edema | 3 | 50,0 |
| Decreasing fat mass /weight loss | 3 | 50,0 |
| Gastrointestinal Disorders | 5 | 83,0 |
| Feeling of fullness | 2 | 33,0 |
| Common usage areas of Corn Silk | | |
| As tea | 6 | 100,0 |
| Preparing Corn for usage | | |
| Boiling (decoction) | 3 | 50,0 |
| Brewing (infusion) | 3 | 50,0 |
| Frequency to consume Corn Silk | | |
| Once in a day | 2 | 33,0 |
| 2-3 days in a week/month | 4 | 67,0 |
| Purchasing Corn Silk from | | |
| Herbalist | 6 | 100,0 |
| Internet | 1 | 17,0 |
| Market | 1 | 17,0 |
| Purchase pattern of Corn Silk | | |
| Unpacked | 6 | 100,0 |
| Learning about Corn Silk from | | |
| TV | 2 | 33,0 |
| Internet | 4 | 67,0 |
| Magazine/newspaper | 1 | 17,0 |
| Friend or Family advise | 4 | 67,0 |
| Believes about getting benefit from | | |
| Corn Silk consumption | | |
| Yes | 6 | 100,0 |

According to the results of the survey; participants use corn silk for losing fat and edema. All participants prefer corn silk as tea. Considering the frequency of use of corn silk, it is shown that the maximum usage is 2-3 times per week / month. Participants who consume corn silk prefer to purchase corn silk from herbalist and as unpackaged. People who prefer the corn silk influenced through internet, friends and parent's advice.100% of the users reported that they benefited from the use of corn silk.

5. DISCUSSION

In order to evaluate the use of herbal supplements who applied to the nutrition and dietetics polyclinics of a private hospital in İstanbul, 48% of the participants who is in the study reported that they used herbal supplements with their diet. These results were found to be lower than the results obtained from a similar study in Kayseri province (53.6%) (75). But Nur et al. who studied in 28 provinces found lower percentage of usage of herbal supplements (39.2%) (76). The difference in the number of participants, percentage of sex, range of age and area that study took place, may have affected the usage of herbal supplements.

Of the 133 individuals who completed the study, 52% said that they did not use herbal products. The reasons for not using herbal supplements, respectively: I do not have enough knowledge %27, Not useful 12%, I think it is harmful 18%, Not easily accessible 4%, There is no need to be consumed by healthy people 28%, I think my diet is enough to weight loss 27%. In a similar study, in Kansas City, 211 people out of 267 participants (79%) did not use herbal supplements (77). When all participants were asked about the reliability of herbal products, 66% thought that herbal supplements would not pose a health risk. Only 27% of the participants doubted the purity of herbal supplements, while 45% thought the products were not standardized by the producers. Our study and the study in Kansas City have the similar results. Most of the participants do not use herbal support. And, participants in both studies think that herbal support is not harmful, but they do not have enough knowledge about it. In another study Kaner, G. et al. showed that that approximately one third of the users of herbal product used herbal products without doing any research (75). The lack of knowledge about herbal supplements is quite high according to the supported results.

In the results obtained in our study, it was found that 78% of the 64 participants who used the herbal supplements were women. Similar studies have shown that women have higher usage of herbal products (75, 76). According to another study there was no significant difference between women and men participant in terms of herbal supplement usage (78).

When the education level of the participants is compared in this study, 95% of the 64 individuals who prefer to use herbals are graduated from at least high school. Similar to this research, it has been shown in studies (75, 76) that the use of herbal support is higher in individuals with higher education levels. We expected that participants with

higher education levels would be lower usage of herbal plants. But our results and smilar studies indicates the opposite.

In our study, the average BMI of herbal supplement using women is 29kg/m². The study of Aydın, S. et al. supports these findings that BMI of herbal supplement using women is found to be over 25 kg/m² (79).

In a study which is conducted with nurses that working in a medical center in Malatya over 252 participants only 20 nurses were found to be using herbal supplements in contrast to 48% of the 133 participants in our study have reported that they use herbal supplements (80). According to another study done by Ergen, A. et al. also demonstrated that increased awareness about nutritional support products (81). In our study %61,8 of the participants stated that they knew herbal supplements but usage of herbal extracts by the participants was 28.3%. When we consider these studies, population which was chosen, number of samples, demographic properties were all different. Because there is no study representing all the society, it is hard to make a general judgment.

Considering the purpose of use of herbal supplements; Koç, H. showed that 2.8% of the participants used herbal products for weight loss. Kaner, G. et al. in their study 14.6% over the 855 participants, use herbal supplements for obesity (75, 80). In our study, 48% of 133 people reported their aim for using herbal supplements as for weight loss or weight control. According to Kaner, G. et al. showed that 59 of 458 people used the herbs to regulate the intestinal function. Differently, in our study aims of use of herbal supplements as a regulator of intestinal functions are analyzed separately. We see that the highest amount of usage of herbal for intestinal system is corn silk with 83% and then the flax seed comes with 80% usage. 21.8% of green tea, 21% of ginger, 72.7% of black seed, 12.5% of cherry stalk, 18.7% of white tea, 33% of turmeric was shown in the survey.

October 1, 1985 date and 5777 by the Ministry of Health on "Herbalists, Spice and similar shops are" related circulars have been identified and regulated in 1999 (82). It is forbidden for the herbalists to advise and prepare herbals, herbal mixtures, herbal products against various diseases. According to this circular report herbs would be stored in sealed containers and would be presented to the customer in healthy conditions. However, many herbal mixtures and products are found in randomly prepared in the shops. There is a study conducted in Isparta and Afyon stated that 47.4% of the herbalists had their own mixtures and sold these mixtures and 52.6% of them did not have their own mixtures (83). Although 52.6% of the herbalists stated that they do not have mixtures, it was observed in the research that almost every transfer was done by mixing the plants

and selling them in stores. Standardization is one of the main problems of herbs by herbalists (41). 'Standardization' describes all measurements made during the production process and quality controls to ensure reproducible quality. Unfortunately, standardization is not possible if herbal product does not produced and tested in laboratories. That's why optimum effect of the herbs taken from herbalists is unobtainable. Another problem is about herbals that they have poor storage conditions and they are susceptible to contamination. Contamination of herbal products can be due to various reasons. Plants growing close to asphalt and in places near thermoelectric power plants contain 3-4 times more heavy metal than normal. Unhealthy storage conditions, chemical products added for preservation, pesticides used by unconscious producers were the main reasons for other contamination (84).

Despite all risks, in our study, 50 of the 64 people who used herbal supplements from the participants stated that they bought at least one is unpacked. The remaining 14 participants stated that they purchased their herbal supplements from markets and packed. If we consider the places where individuals purchase herbal supplements: we see that all the participants using corn silk prefer buying the herb from herbalists. More than half of the participants who are buying mate tea, turmeric, cinnamon, ginger, flax seed and cherry stalk prefer herbalist to markets. Another study supported our results that they showed most of the participants (men: 75.8%; women: 86.6%) receive herbal supplements from the herbalists (75).

In a study conducted on the use of herbal supplements in university students and their families more than half of the participants (men: 51.5%; women: 56.0%) said that they were influenced by their neighbors and relatives (75). In our study, the number of participants who are using herbal supplements stated that they were using herbs on recommendations from friends, neighbors or relatives is quite high. In our study when we analyzed every single herbal, the most influenced participants by environmental factors are corn silk users. 67 % of corn silk users were mentioned that they were affected by their families, friends or relatives. Participants who used other herbals were affected by friends, family or relatives respectively: cinnamon 59%, ginger 47%, mate tea 44%, black seed 42%, flax seed 40%, cherry stalk 38%, green tea 33%, turmeric 27%, white tea 7%. In other studies which are supporting our study, it was found that the participants were affected by television to use herbal supports (75, 85). Ergen A. mentioned that people with a high television watching rate and low education levels are more interested in herbal

mixtures and are perceived as a kind of medicine (81). However, no significant relationship was found between education level and herbal use in our study.

According to Kaner, G. et al. 387 participants from 458 people who use herbal products say that they benefit from herbal use and / or suggest others to use it, while 71 people say they do not benefit and / or do not recommend (75). In our study it was analyzed separately to the benefits of the participants for each herbal. Participants using corn silk and ginger stated that they had 100% benefits from the usage of herbs. For the other herbals are listed respectively as their benefit rates: 95% flaxseed, 94% green tea and black seed, %91 cinnamon, 87% white tea, 80 % turmeric, 75% charry stalk, 70% mate tea.

In our study, the frequency of use of green tea is 51.6%. In a similar study conducted by Kandıralı, Ş, the frequency of use of green tea is 88.6% (86). Sheik, R et al. showed that 28.8% of the participants use the green tea every day, and people who use green tea is said to be effective in losing weight (87). According to another study in Karachi, 67 of the 100 participants use the greenery every day (88). In this study, all the participants who consumed green tea, prefer green tea at least once every day and that 5 people consumed green tea 3 or more a day. The aim of the participants 71% are losing fat and 65% of edema problems.

Kandıralı, Ş. showed the frequency of use of ginger is 68.6%. In our study, the frequency of ginger use is 59% (86). Another study in Adıyaman province, ginger is used for appetite and relaxing effect of the stomach and it is used mostly as a spice in the food (89). In our study, 13% of people who use ginger have said that they use ginger because they give appetite suppressant and feeling of satiety. In addition, 7% used to eliminate gas problems. There are 47% of people who use it for weight loss because they think it mostly help for edema problems and help for losing weight.

In a study conducted by Demircioğlu, Y., 445 of the 626 participants used cinnamon (71.7%) (90). However, the use of cinnamon for medical treatment was found to be quite low. 58.2% of the participants stated that they used cinnamon to beautify the smell and taste of the foods. In another study cinnamon was included in the first five most commonly used herbals (30,1%) (75). In our study, the frequency of cinnamon use is 86%. 78% of the participants preferred the use of the cinnamon as a flavor on food or water. It is used as tea is 60%. Those who say that I use cinnamon as an appetite suppressant are 85%, as a fat burner and edema problem 25%.

Tekün, E found that the awareness of white tea was 33%. In this study, 16 of the participants using 64 herbals prefer to use white tea. Ulusoy, A. et al made the study while white tea is known to be 11.5%, only 2.3% of the participants are using white tea (92).

According to the study Değirmenci, Y. et al., 94 of the 624 participants (15%) participated in the study using turmeric (90). It is reported that 94 people using turmeric used only 8 people for herbal treatment of turmeric. The remaining 20 of them use the food to enhance the taste, to make the beauty of the 19,9 is to beautify the look of the, 7 is to make the appetite and 33 is to think about the antimicrobial effect. Those who use herbal treatment primarily use turmeric for complaints of gas problems and digestion. Another similar study conducted between 2008-2012 in South Korea there were 2,216,996 participants (93). There were 664 people in the similar age group who are using turmeric. In the present study, 15 out of 64 participants (23%) reported using turmeric. According to the results of this study, most of the turmeric is used as a spice in the meal (73%). 60% of those who use it as herbal treatment stated that they used to lose weight and then 33% for intestinal function.

In a study conducted in university students and their families black seed was among the first 5 most preferred herbal among 95 herbals (75). The use of black seed by the participants is 28.4%. In the study performed with 39 men participants with central obesity, the use of black seed was found to be effective in the waist circumference and body weight in the participants (94). In this study, 30% of 33 people who use black seed as a fat burner, 33% as an appetite suppressant. However, in another study it was shown that black seed supplement was not significantly effective on waist circumference (95). Studies have been shown to be used in gastrointestinal complaints of black seed (96, 97). In this study, 73% of the people who use black seed are intended to regulate the intestinal functions, and the aim of 15% is to eliminate gas complaints. Black seed oil was used in the article which compiled the most studies to show the effect of black seed on health (97). However, in this survey study, most of the participants who used black seed were used as it was. Only 22% of the participants used the black seed as ground.

The use of Mate, which is mostly used in Brazil, Uruguay, Paraguay and Argentina, has started in the Middle East, Germany and America in recent years (98). In this study, we may see that there are not many people are using mate tea in Turkey. 16% of the participants were using mate tea and 30% stated that they did not benefit from mate tea. 67% of participants are using mate tea for losing fat. Although some supportive data were presented in a study that examined Mate tea, no specific information was found that

the addition of any particular mate was effective to reduce body weight (98). Since the use of Yerba mate in Brazil is known to be very common, it has been questioned about the consumption of coffee and mate tea during the pregnancy period (99). 88.7% of the participants stated that they consumed yerba mate and coffee during their pregnancy, but no significant relationship was found between the hyperactivity and caffeine at the end of the 11-year cohort study on their children (99).

The use of flax seed in food sector due to high nutritional value as well as usage in various areas such as clothing, soap, dyeing has increased the researches which have done on this herbal. However, the importance given to this herbal in our country has decreased over the years. The area of flax seed cultivation, which was 8.700 hectares in 1980, decreased to 350 hectares in 2001 (100). Flaxseed imported to meet the needs of flax seeds in our country in recent years, the seeds are sold without specifying the origin and the seeds offered for sale does not have any standard (101). In this present study, 50% of people using flaxseed stated that they received flax seed from the herbalist. If there are no standards of flax seed which is imported, controls and tests should be done often by the government and herbalists should be audited regularly.

In a study conducted in the Black Sea region, 280 participants and 87 herbals were questioned in the study the most commonly known among the herbals used in the corn silk is intended to relieve the symptoms of urinary tract infections other than food and animal feed (102). In our study, only 6 of the 64 people use corn silk. Participants also prefer corn silk because it regulates intestinal function most. Another purpose of the participants who use corn silk is to eliminate the problems of edema. In another study it was shown that polyphenolic properties of corn silk when infused in 100 degrees of water (103). In this study, all the corn silk participants use herb as tea, but 50% of them brew and 50% of them boil while they are preparing for use. 33% of the participants using the corn silk said that they used it once a day. Rest of the users prefer corn silk 2-3 times a week or month. However, in one study, the recommended dose is to consume between 2 and 8 grams of the herbal by brewing 3 times a day (104).

In our study, 16 participants were using cherry stalk. 94% of cherry stalk users think that it is useful for urinary excretion. Participants were boiling cherry stalk itself. On the other hand, in a clinical study in Tehran the cherry stem was powdered and encapsulated and given to the participants as 2 grams / day (70). At the end of the study there was an increase in urine output. In another study which is conducted by Öztürk, M. et al. noted benefits of cherry as antidiarrheal, anti-inflammatory, laxative, anthelminthic,

antitussive (105). But that study did not mention about cherry stalk and its benefits. When literature review was made there were no enough academic studies. That's why we could not discuss cherry stalk much.

6. CONCLUSION

Obesity is a complex chronic disease that has growing numbers all around the world. Eating habits, lifestyle, genetic and environmental factors may be the reasons of obesity. Dieting, doing exercises and changes in daily habits should be the treatment of obesity. Unfortunately, busy work or school schedules, rush in daily life sway people to find something easy and fast. That's why anti-obesity drugs, bariatric surgeries and herbal product usage have emerged. But anti-obesity drugs may have side effects, bariatric surgeries may be expensive. People think that herbal products are natural and harmless. Also, internet, media, friends or relatives may be the other influencers to use herbal products. Herbalists are easy way to find any kind of herbs. Also, mixtures of herbs prescript as weight loss products. However, when it comes to human health, legal regulations for herbal products are primary importance. Regulating herbal shops about safety storage, toxicology, prescriptions should be conduct by Minister of Health. Turkey has abundant lind in terms of herbs. Unfortunately, not all people are conscious about herbal products. Wrong usage of herbal products or lack of appropriate standards are the key factors of toxicity and it may cause serious injuries, life-threatening conditions, and even death (106). Raising the awareness of the consumers should be needed. Further researches would help to understand the relationship better between obesity and herbal products.

7. REFERENCES

- 1) Jensen M.D., Ryan, D.H., Apovian, C.M., et al. 2013 AHA/ACC/TOS Guideline for the management of overweight and obesity in adults. *Circulation*. 2014; 129, (1,2): 102–138.
- 2) Aktar, N., Qureshi, N.K., and Ferdous, HS. Review article obesity: a review of pathogenesis and management strategies in adult. *Delta Med Col J.* 2017; 5 (1): 35 48.
- 3) Atiyeh, B., and Sarhane, K.A. *Overweight and Obesity: A True Global Epidemic*. In: Body Contouring Following Bariatric Surgery and Massive Weight Loss, Atiyeh B, Castagliola M.,ed. Bentham Books, Lebanon. 2012; 3-11
- 4) Hruby, A., and Hu, F.B. The epidemiology of obesity: a big picture. *Pharmacoeconomics*. 2015; 33 (7): 673–689.
- 5) Report of a WHO Consultation. Obesity: preventing and managing the global epidemic. 2000, Geneva, Switzerland
- 6) Fei, H., Li, M., Liu, W., et al. Potential lipase inhibitors from Chinese medicinal herbs *Pharmaceutical Biology*, 2016; 54: 12, 2845-2850.
- 7) Polikandrioti, M., and Stefanou, E. Obesity disease. *Health Science Journal*. 2009; 3 (3): 132-138
- 8) Tung, Y.C., Hsieh, P.H., Pan, M.H., and Ho, C.T. Cellular models for the evaluation of the antiobesity effect of selected phytochemicals from food and herbs. *J Food Drug Anal*, 2017; 25 (1): 100-110.
- 9) Sun, N.N., Wu, T.Y., and Chau, C.F. Natural Dietary and Herbal Products in Anti-Obesity Treatment. *Molecules*. 2016; 21, 1351
- 10) Chandrasekaran, C.V., Vijayalakshmi, M.A., Prakash, K., Bansal, V.S., Meenakshi, J. and Amit, A. Review article: herbal approach for obesity management. *American Journal of Plant Sciences* [serial online], 2012; 3, 1003-1014 http://dx.doi.org/10.4236/ajps.2012.327119
- 11) Hasani-Ranjbar, S., Nayebi, N., Larijani, B., and Abdollahi, M. A systematic review of the efficacy and safety of herbal medicines used in the treatment of obesity. *World J Gastroenterol*. 2009; 7; 15 (25): 3073–3085.
- 12) Eldalo, A.S., Alotaibi, M.N., Alenazi, T.O., Albogami, H.A., and Mohamed, K.M. Use of herbal medicines in the treatment of obesity in Taif, Saudi Arabia. *Saudi J Med Med Sci.* 2017; 5 (2): 149-5

- 13) Ekor, M. The growing use of herbal medicines: issues relating to adverse reactions and challenges in monitoring safety. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2014; 4 (177): 177
- 14) Ogden, C.L., Carroll, M.D., Kit, B.K., and Flegal, K.M. Prevalence of childhood and adult obesity in the United States, 2011-2012. *JAMA*. 2014; 26;311 (8): 806-14.
- 15) Ivers, N.M., Jiang, M., Alloo, J., et al. Diabetes Canada 2018 clinical practice guidelines. *Can Fam Physician*. 2019; 65(1): 14–24.
- 16) World Health Organization, Regional Office for Europe. Available at the following link: http://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/disease-prevention/nutrition/a-healthy-lifestyle/body-mass-index-bmi Last seen: 14.04.19
- 17) World Health Organization. Available at the following link: https://www.who.int/gho/ncd/risk_factors/overweight_obesity/bmi_trends_adults/en / Last seen: 14.04.19
- 18) Satman, İ., Alagöl, F., Ömer, B., et al. Türkiye Diyabet, Hipertansiyon, Obezite ve Endokrinolojik Hastalıklar Prevalans Çalışması-II. *Turkish Journal of Endocrinology and Metabolism*. 2012; 16 (1)
- 19) Waleed, N.R., Algadhi, Y.A., Assiri, S.A., et al. Bariatric surgery to treat obesity among adults. *The Egyptian Journal of Hospital Medicine*. 2017; 69(5): 2400-2404
- 20) Brehm, B.J., D'Alessio, D.A., Environmental factors influencing obesity. In: De Groot, L.J., Chrousos, G., Dungan, K., et al., ed. *Endotext* [Serial Online]. 2014. Last seen: 12.04.19 https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK278977
- 21) Austin, J., and Marks, D. Review Article hormonal: regulators of appetite. International Journal of Pediatric Endocrinology. 2009; (1): 141753
- 22) Schwartz, M.W., Seeley, R.J., Zeltser, L.M., et al. Obesity pathogenesis: an endocrine society scientific statement. *Endocrine Reviews*. 2017; 38 (4): 1–30
- 23) Heindel, J.J., Newbold, R., and Schug T.T. Endocrine disruptors and obesity. *Nat Rev Endocrinol*. 2015; 11 (11): 653-61
- 24) Sheikh, A., Nasrullah, A., Haq, S., et al. The interplay of genetics and environmental factors in the development of obesity. *Cureus*. 2017; 6; 9 (7): e1435.
- 25) Jacobsona, SH., King, DM. and Yuan, R. A note on the relationship between obesity and driving. *Transport Policy*. 2011; 18 (5): 772-776
- 26) Donnelly, J.E., Blair, S.N., Jakicic, J.M., Manore, M.M., Rankin, J.W., and Smith, B.K. Appropriate physical activity intervention strategies for weight loss and prevention of weight regain for adults. *Med Sci in Sports and Exercise*. 2009; 41: 459-471

- 27) Somasundaram, N., Rajaratnam, H., Wijeyarathne, C., et al. Management of obesity. Sri Lanka Journal of Diabetes, Endocrinology and Metabolism. 2014; 1: 55-70
- 28) Sacks, F.M., Bray, G.A., Carey, V.J., et al. Comparison of weight-loss diets with different compositions of fat, protein, and carbohydrates. *New England Journal of Medicine*. 2009; 360: 859-873
- 29) Noakes, M., Keogh, J.B., Foster, P.R. and Clifton, P.M. Effect of an energy-restricted, high-protein, low-fat diet relative to a conventional high-carbohydrate, low-fat diet on weight loss, body composition, nutritional status, and markers of cardiovascular health in obese women. *Am J Clin Nutr.* 2005; 81:1298–306
- 30) Blundell, J.E., Baker, J.L., Boyland, E., et al. Variations in the prevalence of obesity among European countries, and a consideration of possible cause. *Obes Facts*. 2017; 10: 25–37
- 31) Moreno, L.A., Gottrand, F., Huybrechts I., et al. Nutrition and Lifestyle in European Adolescents: The HELENA (Healthy Lifestyle in Europe by Nutrition in Adolescence) Study *Adv Nutr.* 2014; 5 (5): 615–623.
- 32) Curry, S.A. Obesity epidemic: pharmaceutical weight loss. *R I Med J.* 2017; 1; 100 (2): 18-20.
- 33) Garvey, W.T., Mechanick, JI., Brett, E.M., et al. American Association of Clinical Endocrinologists and American College of Endocrinology comprehensive clinical practice guidelines for medical care of patients with obesity. *Endocr Pract.* 2016; 22 (3): 1-203
- 34) Daneschvar, H.L., Aronson, M.D., and Smetana, G.W. FDA-approved anti-obesity drugs in the United States. *The American Journal of Medicine*. 2016; 129,879. el.879.e6
- 35) Safadi, B., and Masri, S. *Bariatric surgery: an overview*. In: Body Contouring Following Bariatric Surgery and Massive Weight Loss, Atiyeh B, Castagliola M., ed. Bentham Books, Lebanon. 2012; 12-22
- 36) Pournaras, D.J., and Roux, C.W. *Physiological and nutritional impact of bariatric surgery*. In: Body Contouring Following Bariatric Surgery and Massive Weight Loss, Atiyeh B, Castagliola M., ed. Bentham Books, Lebanon. 2012; 23-28
- 37) Tütüncü, S., Etiler, N. *Tıbbın Alternatifi Olmaz! Geleneksel Alternatif Ve Tamamlayıcı Tıp Uygulamaları*. 2017, Ankara. Türk Tabipleri Birliği Yayınları

- 38) Melli, M. Bitkilerden ilaç elde edilmesi ve bitkilerin ilaç olarak kullanılması. Türk Tabipleri Birliği 2017, Available at the following link: http://www.ttb.org.tr/index.php/Haberler/ttb-4420.html, Last seen: 14.04.19
- 39) Kara, B. Herbal product use in a sample of Turkish patients undergoing haemodialysis, *Journal of Clinical Nursing*, 2009; 18: 2197–2205 2197.
- 40) Sarışen, Ö., and Çalışkan, D. Fitoterapi: bitkilerle tedaviye dikkat. *Sürekli Tıp Eğitim Dergisi*. 2005; 14 (8): 182.
- 41) Akçakaya, M.S. Alıcılar ve aktarlar açısından şifalı bitkilere kişisel yaklaşım [dissertation]. Aydın, Adnan Menderes Üniversitesi, 2015.
- 42) Atalay, D., Selen Erge, H. Determination of some physical and chemical properties of white, green and black teas (Camellia sinensis). *Gida*. 2017; 42 (5): 494-504
- 43) Hursel, R. The effects of green tea on weight loss and weight maintenance: a metaanalysis. *International Journal of Obesity*. 2009; 33, 956–961
- 44) Rocha, A., Bolin, A.P., Cardoso, C.A., and Otton, R. Green tea extract activates AMPK and ameliorates white adipose tissue metabolic dysfunction induced by obesity. *Eur J Nutr.* 2016; 55:2231–2244
- 45) Huang, J., Wang, Y., Xie, Z., Zhou, Y., Zhang, Y., and Wan, X. The anti-obesity effects of green tea in human intervention and basic molecular studies. *European Journal of Clinical Nutrition*. 2014; 68, 1075–1087
- 46) Lenon, G.B., Li, K.X., Chang, Y.H., et al. Efficacy and safety of a Chinese herbal medicine formula (RCM-104) in the management of simple obesity: a randomized, placebo-controlled clinical trial. *Evid Based Compl Alternat Med.* 2012: 1–11
- 47) Meydani, M. and Hasan, S.T. Dietary polyphenols and obesity. *Nutrients* 2010;2,737-751
- 48) Söhle, J., Knott, A., Holtzmann, U., et al. White Tea extract induces lipolytic activity and inhibits adipogenesis in human subcutaneous (pre)-adipocytes. *Nutrition & Metabolism.* 2009; 6:20
- 49) Carlonia, P., Tiano, L., Padella, L., et al. Antioxidant activity of white, green and black tea obtained from the same tea cultivar. *Food Research International*. 2013; 53 (2): 900-908
- 50) Kim, Y., Goodner, K.L., Park, J.D., Choi, J., and Talcott, S.T. Changes in antioxidant phytochemicals and volatile composition of Camellia sinensis by oxidation during tea fermentation. *Food Chem.* 2011; 129: 1331-1342

- 51) Teixeira, L.G., Lages, P.C., Jascolka, T.L., et al. White tea (Camellia sinensis) extract reduces oxidative stress and triacylglycerols in obese mice. *Ciênc. Tecnol. Aliment.*, *Campinas.* 2012; 32 (4): 733-741
- 52) Ardiana, L., Sauriasari R., and Elya, B. Antidiabetic activity studies of white tea (Camellia sinensis (L.) O. Kuntze) ethanolic extracts in streptozotocin-nicotinamide induced diabetic rats. *Pharmacognosy J.* 2018; 10 (1): 186-189
- 53) Cuelho, C.H.F.; Bonilha, I.D.F.; Canto, G.S.D.; Manfron, M.P. Recent advances in the bioactive properties of yerba mate *Revista Cubana de Farmacia*. 2015; 49 (2): 375-383
- 54) De Meneses Fujii, T.M., Jacob, P.S., Yamada, M. Yerba Mate (Ilex paraguariensis) modulates NF-kappa B pathway and AKT expression in the liver of rats fed on a high-fat diet. *Int J Food Sci Nutr.* 2014;65 (8): 967–976
- 55) Borges, M.C., Vinolo, M.A., Nakajima, K., et al. The effect of mate tea (Ilex paraguariensis) on metabolic and inflammatory parameters in high-fat diet-fed Wistar rats. *International Journal of Food Sciences and Nutrition*. August 2013; 64 (5): 561–569
- 56) Mohtashami, A. and Entezari, M.H. Effects of Nigella sativa supplementation on blood parameters and anthropometric indices in adults: a systematic review on clinical trials. *J Res Med Sci.* 2016; 21: 3.
- 57) Namazi, N., Mahdavi, N., Alizadeh, M., and Faraja, S. The effects of Nigella sativa oil with a balanced low-calorie diet on insulin resistance in obese women: gene-intervention interactions. *Current Topics In Nutraceutical Research* Vol. 2016; 14 (4): 273-282,
- 58) Farzaneh, E., Rahmani Nia, F., Mehrtash, M., Mirmoeini, F.S., and Jalilvand, M. The effects of 8-week Nigella sativa supplementation and aerobic training on lipid profile and VO2 max in sedentary overweight females. *International Journal of Preventive Medicine*. 2014; 5 (2): 210-216
- 59) Qidwai, W., Hamza, H.B., Qureshi, R., and Gilani, A. Effectiveness, safety, and tolerability of powdered Nigella sativa (kalonji) seed in capsules on serum lipid levels, blood sugar, blood pressure, and body weight in adults: results of a randomized, double-blind controlled trial. *J Altern Complement Med.* 2009; 15 (6): 639-44
- 60) Mollazadeh, H., and Hosseinzadeh, H. Cinnamon effects on metabolic syndrome: a review based on its mechanisms. *Iran J Basic Med Sci.* 2016; 19: 1258-1270

- 61) Sartorius, T., Peter, A., Schulz, N., et al. Cinnamon extract improves insulin sensitivity in the brain and lowers liver fat in mouse models of obesity. *PLoS One* [serial online], 2014; 9(3): e92358. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0092358
- 62) Liu, Y., Cotillard, A., Vatier, C. A dietary supplement containing cinnamon, chromium and carnosine decreases fasting plasma glucose and increases lean mass in overweight or obese pre-diabetic subjects: a randomized, placebo-controlled trial. *PLoS One* [serial online], 2015; 25;10(9): e0138646. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0138646
- 63) Hanif Palla, A., and Gilani, A.H. Dual effectiveness of Flaxseed in constipation and diarrhea: possible mechanism. *Journal of Ethnopharmacology*. 2015; 1: 169:60-8.
- 64) Xu, J., Zhou, X., and Chen C. Laxative effects of partially defatted flaxseed meal on normal and experimental constipated mice. *BMC Complement Altern Med.* 2012; 12(1): 14
- 65) Cassani, R.S., Fassini, P.G., Silvah, J.H., Lima, C.M., and Marchini, J.S. Impact of weight loss diet associated with flaxseed on inflammatory markers in men with cardiovascular risk factors: a clinical study. *Nutrition Journal*. 2015; 10: 14:5.
- 66) Bashir, S., Ali, S., and Khan, F. Partial reversal of obesity-induced insulin resistance owing to anti-inflammatory immunomodulatory potential of flaxseed oil. *Immunological Investigations*. 2015; 44 (5): 451–469
- 67) Zhang, Y., Wu, L., Ma, Z., Cheng, J., and Liu, J. Anti-diabetic, anti-oxidant and anti-hyperlipidemic activities of flavonoids from corn silk on STZ-induced diabetic mice. *Molecules*. 2015; 21 (1): 7
- 68) Hasanudin, K., Hashim, Puziah., and Mustafa, S. Corn silk (Stigma maydis) in healthcare: a phytochemical and pharmacological review. *Molecules*. 2012; 17: 9697-9715
- 69) Wang, C., Yin, Y., Cao, X., and Li, X. Effects of Maydis stigma polysaccharide on the intestinal microflora in type-2 diabetes. *Pharmaceutical Biology*. 2016; 54 (12): 3086–3092
- 70) Hooman, N., Mojab, F., Nickavar, B., and Pouryousefi-Kermani, P. Diuretic effect of powdered Cerasus avium (cherry) tails on healthy volunteers. *Pak. J. Pharm. Sci.* 2009; 22 (4): 381-3.
- 71) de Las Heras, N., Valero-Muñoz, M., Martín-Fernández, B., et al. Molecular factors involved in the hypolipidemic- and insulin-sensitizing effects of a ginger (Zingiber

- officinale Roscoe) extract in rats fed a high-fat diet. *Appl. Physiol. Nutr. Metab.* 2017; 42: 209–215
- 72) Suk, Sujin., Seo, S.G., Yu, J.G., et al. A bioactive constituent of ginger, 6-Shogaol, prevents adipogenesis and stimulates lipolysis in 3t3-L1 adipocytes. *Journal of Food Biochemistry*. 2016; 40 (1): 84-90
- 73) Changes of serum adipocytokines and body weight following Zingiber officinale supplementation in obese women: a RCT Vahideh Ebrahimzadeh Attari1et al. *Eur J Nutr* 2016; 55: 2129–2136
- 74) Jiménez-Osorio, A.S., Monroy, A., and Alavez, S. Curcumin and insulin resistance-Molecular targets and clinical evidences. *International Union of Biochemistry and Molecular Biology*. 2016; 2; 42 (6): 561-580.
- 75) Kaner, G., Karaalp, C., and Seremet-Kürklü, N. Üniversite öğrencileri ve ailelerinde bitkisel ürün kullanım sıklığının ve bitkisel ürün kullanımını etkileyen faktörlerin belirlenmesi. *Türk Hijyen ve Deneysel Biyoloji Dergisi*. 2017; 74 (1): 37-54
- 76) Nur, N. Knowledge and behaviours related to herbal remedies: a cross-sectional epidemiological study in adults in Middle Anatolia, Turkey. *Health and Social Care in the Community*. 2010; 18 (4), 389–395
- 77) U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Dietary Supplements. Available at the following link: https://www.fda.gov/Food/DietarySupplements/ Last seen: 14.04.19
- 78) Ünsal, G.N., Özdemir, G., Ersoy, G. The assessment of the consumer awareness in nutritional support products usage. *Sağlık Bilimleri Tip Dergisi*. 2010; 24(2), 81-88.
- 79) Aydın, S. Bozkaya, A.O., Mazıcıoğlu, M., Gemalmaz, A., Özçakır, A., and Öztürk, A. What influences herbal medicine use? prevalence and related factors. *Turk J Med Sci.* 2008; 38 (5): 455-463
- 80) Geçgel Koç, H. *Turgut Özal Tıp Merkezi hemşirelerinin zayıflama amaçlı diyet ürünü kullanma durumları ve sağlıklı yaşam biçimi davranışları* [dissertation]. Malatya, İnönü Üniversitesi, 2015.
- 81) Ergen, A., and Bozkurt Bekoğlu, F. Türkiye'de besin destek ürünlerine yönelik görüşler ve tüketici profilini tanımlamaya yönelik bir araştırma. *Journal of Business Research Turk.* 2016; 8 (1): 323-341
- 82) T.C. Sağlık Bakanlığı Türkiye ilaç ve tıbbi cihaz kurumu. Aktarlar, baharatçılar ve benzeri dükkanlar. Genelge, 2016. Available at the following link: https://titck.gov.tr/storage/legislation/PrMEZZII.pdf Last seen: 14.04.19

- 83) Faydaoğlu, E. *Isparta ve Afyon illerinde tıbbi ve aromatik amaçlı kullanılan bitkilerin satılma, toplanma ve kullanılma durumları*. Ankara, Ankara Üniversitesi, 2013.
- 84) Uzun, M.B., Aykaç, G., and Özçelikay, G. bitkisel ürünlerin yanlış kullanımı ve zararları. *Lokman Hekim Journal*, 2014; 4 (3): 1-5
- 85) Marinac, J.S., Buchinger, C.L., Godfrey, L.A., Wooten, J.M., Sun, C., and Willsie, S.K. Herbal products and dietary supplements: a survey of use, attitudes, and knowledge among older adults. *The Journal of the American Osteopathic Association*. 2007; 107 (1): 13-20.
- 86) Kandıralı, Ş. Özel Bir Sağlıklı Beslenme Ve Diyet Danışmanlığı'na Başvuran Danışanların Fonksiyonel Besinlere Yönelik Farkındalığı, Bilgi Düzeyleri Ve Tüketim Sıklıklarının Araştırılması [dissertation]. Ankara, Başkent Üniversitesi, 2014
- 87) Sheik, R., Priya V,V., and Mohan, S.K. Effect of green tea on obesity. *Int. J. Pharm. Sci. Rev. Res.* 2015; 33 (2) 15: 73-75
- 88) Naveed, S., Hameed, A., and Jaffery, W.Z. Consumption of green tea in professionals and non-professionals. *American Journal of Drug Delivery and Therapeutics*. 2014; 1 (4): 082-088
- 89) Akan, H., Bakır Sade, Y. Kâhta (Adıyaman) Merkezi ve Narince Köyü'nün etnobotanik açıdan araştırılması. *BEÜ Fen Bilimleri Dergisi*. 2015; 4 (2): 219-248
- 90) Demircioğlu, Y., Yaman, M., and Şimşek, I. Kadınların baharat kullanım alışkanlıkları üzerine bir araştırma. *TSK Koruyucu Hekimlik Bülteni*. 2007: 6 (3)
- 91) Tekün, E. Farklı eğitim düzeylerindeki obez olan ve olmayan bireylerin fonksiyonel besinleri kullanma durumlarının belirlenmesi. İstanbul, Haliç Üniversitesi, 2015.
- 92) Ulusoy, A. Şeker, M., ed. *Türkiye'de Değişen Çay Tüketim Alışkanlıkları Araştırması*. Trabzon, İstanbul, 2013
- 93) Kwon, Y. Estimation of curcumin intake in Korea based on the Korea National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (2008-2012). *Research and Practice*. 2014; 8 (5): 589-594
- 94) Datau, E.A., Wardhana, Surachmanto, E.E., Pandelaki, K., Langi, J.A., and Fias. Efficacy of Nigella sativa on serum free testosterone and metabolic disturbances in central obese male. *Acta Med Indones*. 2010; 42 (3): 130-4.
- 95) Mousavi, S.M., Sheikhi, A., Varkaneh, H.K., Zarezadeh, M.,, Rahmani, J., and Milajerdi, A. Effect of Nigella sativa supplementation on obesity indices: a systematic review and meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. *Complementary Therapies in Medicine*. 2018; 38: 48-57.

- 96) Shakeri, F., Gholamnezhad, Z., Mégarbane, Bruno., Rezaee, R., and Boskabady, M.H. Gastrointestinal effects of Nigella sativa and its main constituent, thymoquinone: a review. *Avicenna Journal of Phytomedicine*. 2016; 6 (1): 9–20.
- 97) Tavakkoli, A., Mahdian, V., Razavi, B.M., and Hosseinzadeh, H. Review on clinical trials of black seed (Nigella sativa) and its active constituent, thymoquinone. *Journal of Pharmacopuncture*. 2017; 20 (3): 179-193
- 98) An agency of the European Union. Assessment report on Ilex paraguariensis St. Hilaire, folium. *European Medicines Agency* [serial online], 2011. Last seen: 14.04.19 https://www.ema.europa.eu/en/documents/herbal-monograph/final-community-herbal-monograph-ilex-paraguariensis-st-hil-folium_en.pdf
- 99) Del-Ponte, B., Santos, I.S., Tovo-Rodrigues, L., Anselmi, L., Munhoz, T.N., and Matijasevich, A. Caffeine consumption during pregnancy and ADHD at the age of 11 years: a birth cohort study. *BMJ Open* [serial online]. 2016; 5; 6 (12): e012749 Last seen: 12.04.19 https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27920084
- 100) Tunçtürk, M. Van koşullarında bazı keten (Linum usitatissimum L.) çeşitlerinin verim ve bazı verim ögelerinin belirlenmesi. *Tarım Bilimleri Dergisi*. 2007; 13 (4): 365-371
- 101) Yener. İ. Keten tohumu ve fitoterapi[dissertation]. Ankara, Gazi Üniversitesi, 2011.
- 102) Akbulut, S., and Özkan, Z. Traditional usage of some wild plants in Trabzon region (Turkey). *Kastamonu Univ., Journal of Forestry Faculty*. 2014; 14 (1) 135-145
- 103) Kılıç, C., Can, Z., Yılmaz, A., Yıldız, S., and Turna, H. Antioxidant properties of some herbal teas (green tea, senna, corn silk, rosemary) brewed at different temperatures. *Int. J. Sec. Metabolite*. 2017; 4: (3) 142-148
- 104) Spiteri, M. Herbal monographs including herbal medicinal products and food supplements [dissertation]. Malta, University of Malta, 2011.
- 105) Öztürk, M., Güçel, S., Altundağ, E., et al. An overview of the medicinal plants of Turkey. *Ethnopharmacol. Encycl. Life Support Syst.* 2012; 6: 181-206.
- 106) Calahan, J., Howard, D., Almalki, A. J., Gupta, M. P., and Calderón, A. I. Chemical adulterants in herbal medicinal products: a review. *Planta Medica*. 2016; 82 (06): 505-515.

Appendix 1. The Questionnaire Form

| 1. BÖLÜM |
|--|
| 1-Doğum tarihiniz |
| 2-Cinsiyetiniz Kadın □ Erkek □ |
| 3-Boyunuz |
| 4-Kilonuz |
| 5-Bel çevresi |
| 6- Eğitim durumunuz Okuma- yazma yok |
| 7-Teşhisi konulmuş hastalığınız var mı? Evet :: Varsa nedir? Hayır ::: |
| 8-Kullanmakta olduğunuz ilaç/ takviye var mı? Evet Kullandığınız ilaç veya takviyeler: Hayır |
| 9-Kronik kabızlığınız var mı? Evet Hayır 10-Kilo vermekte zorlandığınızı düşünüyor musunuz? Sizce neden? |
| 11- Bitkisel desteklerin kilo kontrol/kaybında etkili olduğunu düşünüyor musunu Evet □ Hayır □ |
| 12-Bitkisel destekleri kilo kaybı veya kontrolü için kullanıyor musunuz Evet □ Hayır □ |
| 12. soruya Cevabınız HAYI R ise nedeni Yeterince bilgim yok |

| Faydalı değil | |
|---|---|
| Zararlı olduğunu düşünüyorum | |
| Kolay erişilebilir değil, her yerde bulamıyorum | |
| Sağlıklı insanlar tarafından tüketilmesine gerek yo | k□ |
| Zayıflamak için diyetimin yeterli olduğunu düşünü | |
| Diğer | , |
| 12. soruya cevabınız EVET ise aşağıdaki sorula | ra devam ediniz |
| | - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W |
| 2. BÖLÜM | |
| 13-Yeşilçay kullanır mısınız? | |
| Evet □ | |
| Hayır \Box | |
| • | |
| Cevabınız evet ise aşağıdaki 14-21. sorulara cev | ap veriniz: |
| 14-Yeşilçayı diyetinizde hangi amaçla kullanıyo | rsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| Ödem atıcı | |
| Yağ yakıcı | |
| Bağırsak fonksiyonlarını düzenleyici | |
| Gaz problemini giderici | |
| Tokluk hissi /iştah kapatıcı | |
| Diğer | |
| | |
| 15-Yeşilçayı kullanım alanlarınız (Birden fazla s | secenek isaretlevebilirsiniz) |
| Yemekte, baharat olarak □ | , |
| Çay olarak \Box | |
| Diğer | |
| 2-8 | |
| 16-Yeşilçayı tüketime nasıl hazırlarsınız? (Birde | en fazla secenek isaretlevebilirsiniz) |
| Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) | ,, |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek | |
| Diğer | |
| Diger | |
| 17-Yeşilçayı kullanım sıklığınız | |
| Günde 1 | |
| Günde 2 | |
| Günde 3 | |
| Günde 3 ten çok □ | |
| Guide 5 ten çok | |
| 18-Yeşilçayı temin ettiğiniz yer veya yerler (Biro | len fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| Eczane | |
| Aktar | |
| İnternet | |
| Market | |
| Diğer | |

| 19-Yeşilçayı satın alırken nasıl olmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
|---|
| Açık |
| Ambalajlı Santa i de la dela de |
| Supplement olarak (tablet formunda) |
| 20-Yeşilçay hakkında etkilendiğiniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) TV Doktor veya diyetisyen Dergi / gazete |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiyesi □ Diğer |
| 21-Yeşilçay kullanımından fayda gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? Evet □ |
| Hayır \square |
| 22-Beyaz çay kullanır mısınız? Evet |
| Hayır \square |
| Cevabınız evet ise aşağıdaki 23-30. sorulara cevap veriniz: |
| 23-Beyaz çayı diyetinizde hangi amaçla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Ödem atıcı |
| Yağ yakıcı □ |
| Bağırsak fonksiyonlarını düzenleyici |
| Gaz problemini giderici |
| Tokluk hissi /iştah kapatıcı |
| Diğer |
| 24- Beyaz çayı kullanım alanlarınız (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) Yemekte, baharat olarak |
| Çay olarak |
| Diğer |
| 25-Beyaz çayı tüketime nasıl hazırlarsınız? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) |
| Öğüterek Diğer |
| 26-Beyaz çayı kullanım sıklığınız |
| Günde 1 □ |
| Günde 2 □ |
| Günde 3 □ |

| Günde 3 ten çok | | |
|---|---|--|
| 27-Beyaz çayı tem işaretleyebilirsiniz Eczane | | eya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| 28-Beyaz çayı satı işaretleyebilirsiniz | | lmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek |
| Açık | | |
| Ambalajlı | | |
| Supplement olarak | (tablet formunda) |) 🗆 |
| •• | | |
| 20 D h -l-l | l | |
| | _ | iniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz | (2) | |
| TV | | |
| Doktor veya diyetis | syen | |
| Dergi / gazete | 1 | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, | komşu tavsiyesi | |
| Diğer | | |
| 30-Revez cay kulle | anımından favda | ı gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| Evet \Box | amminuan rayua | i gordugunuzu duşunuyor musunuz. |
| Hayır \square | | |
| 11ayıı 🗆 | | |
| 31-Mate çayı kulla | anır mısınız? | |
| Evet \Box | *************************************** | |
| Hayır \square | | |
| 114/11 | | |
| Cevabiniz evet ise | aşağıdaki 32-39 | .sorulara cevap veriniz: |
| 22.34 | | |
| , , , | U | açla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz | <u>z)</u> | |
| Ödem atıcı | | |
| Yağ yakıcı | 4. 4 4. 1 | |
| Bağırsak fonksiyor | | 1 🗆 |
| Gaz problemini gid | | |
| Tokluk hissi /iştah | _ | |
| Diğer | ••• | |
| 33-Mate cavi kulle | anım alanlarınız | (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Yemekte, baharat o | | (Dir den iazia seçenen işaretteyebili sililz) |
| Çay olarak | olalak 🗆 | |
| | Ц | |
| Diğer | | |

34- Mate çayı tüketime nasıl hazırlarsınız? (Birden fazla seçenek

| işaretleyebilirsiniz) Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) □ Demleyerek (infüzyon) □ Öğüterek □ Diğer |
|--|
| 35-Mate çayı kullanım sıklığınız Günde 1 □ Günde 2 □ Günde 3 □ Günde 3 ten çok □ |
| 36-Mate çayı temin ettiğiniz yer veya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) Eczane |
| 37-Mate çayını satın alırken nasıl olmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) Açık Ambalajlı □ Supplement olarak (tablet formunda) □ |
| 38-Mate çayı hakkında etkilendiğiniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) TV □ Doktor veya diyetisyen □ Dergi / gazete □ Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiyesi □ Diğer |
| 39-Mate çayı kullanımından fayda gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? Evet □ Hayır □ |
| 40-Zencefil kullanır mısınız? Evet Hayır |
| Cevabınız evet ise aşağıdaki 41-48. sorulara cevap veriniz: |
| 41-Zencefil diyetinizde hangi amaçla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Ödem atıcı □ Yağ yakıcı □ Bağırsak fonksiyonlarını düzenleyici □ |

| Gaz problemini giderici | |
|-----------------------------------|--|
| Tokluk hissi /iştah kapatıcı | |
| Diğer | |
| 42 Zanasfili kullanım alanlarını | gz (Dindon fordo soconoly isonotlovohilinsinia) |
| TT 1: 1 1 : 1 1 | z (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| | |
| Çay olarak | |
| Diğer | |
| 43-Zencefili tüketime nasıl hazı | rlarsınız? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) | |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek | |
| Diğer | |
| 2.801 | |
| 44-Zencefil kullanım sıklığınız | |
| Günde 1 □ | |
| Günde 2 □ | |
| Günde 3 □ | |
| Günde 3 ten çok □ | |
| 12 G | |
| e · | eya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| Eczane Alteria | |
| Aktar | |
| Internet Market | |
| Market Dixag | |
| Diğer | |
| 46-Zencefil satın alırken nasıl o | lmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | iniusini tereni ediyorsunuz (birden idzid seçenek |
| Açık | |
| Ambalajlı | |
| Supplement olarak (tablet formun | |
| | , |
| | |
| | iniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| TV | |
| Doktor veya diyetisyen | |
| Dergi / gazete | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiye | Si 🗆 |
| Diğer | |
| 48-7encefil kullanımından fayd | a gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| Evet | a goraugunuzu uuşunuyor musunuz: |
| Hayır \square | |
| 110y11 U | |
| 49-Çörek otu kullanır mısınız? | |
| Evet | |

| Hayır | | |
|-------------------------------|-------------------------|--|
| Cevabiniz ev | et ise aşağıdaki 50-57 | . sorulara cevap veriniz: |
| 50- Çörek otu işaretleyebilir | | amaçla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| Ödem atıcı | , | |
| Yağ yakıcı | | |
| | siyonlarını düzenleyic | i 🗆 |
| Gaz problemi | | |
| Tokluk hissi /i | · - | |
| Diğer | | |
| 51- Cörek otu | ınu kullanım alanları | ınız (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Yemekte, baha | | (|
| Çay olarak | | |
| Diğer | | |
| 52 Cörok otı | unu tiilzotimo nasul ha | zırlarsınız? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebili | | ziriarsınız. (Birden fazia seçenek |
| Kaynatarak (d | | |
| Demleyerek (| infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek | | |
| Olduğu gibi | | |
| Diğer | | |
| 53-Cörek otu | kullanım sıklığınız | |
| Günde 1 | | |
| Günde 2 | | |
| Günde 3 | | |
| Günde 3 ten ç | ok 🗆 | |
| Diğer | | |
| 54 Cörok otu | tomin ottičiniz vor v | eya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebili | | eya yerler (Birden fazia seçenek |
| Eczane | | |
| Aktar | | |
| İnternet | | |
| Market | | |
| Diğer | | |
| 55-Cörek otu | satın alırken nasıl ol | masını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebili | | con cary or a man taken seguine |
| Açık | , | |
| Ambalajlı | | |
| • | larak (tablet formunda) | |
| | | , |

56-Çörek otu hakkında etkilendiğiniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz)

| Market □ Diğer | |
|--|---|
| 64- Kiraz sapını satın alırken nasıl olma seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) | sını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla |
| Açık | |
| Ambalajlı | |
| Supplement olarak (tablet formunda) | |
| | |
| 65- Kiraz sapı hakkında etkilendiğiniz k işaretleyebilirsiniz) | aynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| TV | |
| Doktor veya diyetisyen □ | |
| Dergi / gazete | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiyesi □ | |
| Diğer | |
| | |
| 66- Kiraz sapı kullanımından fayda göre | düğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| Evet User | |
| Hayır 🗆 | |
| 67-Zerdeçal kullanır mısınız? | |
| Evet \square | |
| Hayır \Box | |
| | |
| Cevabınız evet ise aşağıdaki 68-75. sorul | lara cevap veriniz: |
| 68-Zerdeçalı diyetinizde hangi amaçla k | ullanıyarsunuz? (Rirden fazla secenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | unamyorsunuz. (Birden lazia seçenek |
| Ödem atıcı | |
| Yağ yakıcı | |
| Bağırsak fonksiyonlarını düzenleyici | |
| Gaz problemini giderici | |
| Tokluk hissi /iştah kapatıcı | |
| Diğer | |
| 69-Zerdeçalı kullanım alanlarınız (Bird e Yemekte, baharat olarak □ | en fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Çay olarak \Box | |
| Diğer | |
| 70-Zerdeçalı üketime nasıl hazırlarsınız Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) | ? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek \Box | |
| Olduğu gibi | |
| Diğer | |
| | |

71-Zerdeçal kullanım sıklığınız

| Günde 1 | | |
|------------------|----------------------------|---|
| Günde 2 | | |
| Günde 3 | П | |
| Günde 3 ten ço | ok ⊓ | |
| Diğer | | |
| 21841 | | |
| 72-Zerdeçalı t | temin ettiğiniz yer veya y | verler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilir | | , |
| Eczane | | |
| Aktar | | |
| İnternet | | |
| Market | П | |
| Diğer | _ | |
| 8 | | |
| 73-Zerdeçalı s | satın alırken nasıl olması | ını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilir | siniz) | • |
| Açık | | |
| Ambalajlı | | |
| • | arak (tablet formunda) | |
| Diğer | | |
| δ | | |
| 74-Zerdeçal h | akkında etkilendiğiniz k | aynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilir | _ | · |
| TV | | |
| Doktor veya di | | |
| Dergi / gazete | | |
| 0 0 | eyn, komşu tavsiyesi | |
| Diğer | eyn, komşa tavsiyesi 🗆 | |
| Diget | | |
| 75-Zerdecal k | ullanımından favda göre | düğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| | | augunuzu uuşunuy or musunuz. |
| TT | | |
| Hayn | П | |
| 76-Mısır nüsk | tülü kullanır mısınız? | |
| T . | | |
| TT | П | |
| IIajii | | |
| Cevabiniz eve | t ise aşağıdaki sorulara | 77-85. cevap veriniz: |
| 77-Mısır püsk | ülünü diyetinizde hangi | amaçla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla |
| seçenek işaret | leyebilirsiniz) | |
| Ödem atıcı | | |
| Yağ yakıcı | | |
| Bağırsak fonks | siyonlarını düzenleyici | |
| Gaz problemin | ii giderici | |
| Tokluk hissi /is | | |
| Diğer | | |
| S | | |
| 78-Mısır püsk | Tülünü kullanım alanları | nız (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Yemekte, baha | | , |

| Çay olarak | |
|----------------------------|---|
| Diğer | |
| | |
| | ketime nasıl hazırlarsınız ? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) | |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek | |
| Olduğu gibi | |
| Diğer | |
| 00 M | |
| 80-Mısır püskülü kullar | nim sikiiginiz |
| Günde 1 | |
| Günde 2 | |
| Günde 3 | |
| Günde 3 ten çok □ | |
| Diğer | |
| 81-Mısır nüskülünü ten | nin ettiğiniz yer veya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | inii ettiginiz yei veya yerlei (bii deli iazia seçenek |
| Eczane \Box | |
| Aktar | |
| İnternet | |
| 3.6.1 | |
| | |
| Diğer | |
| 82-Mısır püskülünü sat | tın alırken nasıl olmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla |
| seçenek işaretleyebilirsi | |
| Açık | |
| Ambalajlı | |
| Supplement olarak (table | |
| Supprement character (tach | 77 151111411441) |
| | |
| 83-Mısır püskülü hakkı | ında etkilendiğiniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| TV | |
| Doktor veya diyetisyen | |
| Dergi / gazete | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komş | u tavsiyesi □ |
| Diğer | · |
| | 11 1 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 |
| | ullanımından fayda gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| Evet \Box | |
| Hayır \Box | |
| 86-Tarçın kullanır mısı | |
| | n17 ['] / |
| - | nız? |
| Evet Hayır | nız? |

Cevabınız evet ise aşağıdaki 87-94. sorulara cevap veriniz:

| 87-Tarçın diyetinizde hangi ama işaretleyebilirsiniz) | açla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla seçenek |
|---|---|
| Ödem atıcı | |
| | |
| Yağ yakıcı | |
| Bağırsak fonksiyonlarını düzenle | |
| Gaz problemini giderici | |
| Tokluk hissi /iştah kapatıcı | |
| Diğer | |
| 88- Tarçını kullanım alanlarınız Yemekte, baharat olarak | z (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Diğer | |
| 6 | |
| 89- Tarçını tüketime nasıl hazır | larsınız ? (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Kaynatarak (dekoksiyon) | |
| Demleyerek (infüzyon) | |
| Öğüterek | |
| Olduğu gibi | |
| Diğer Diğer | |
| 2.50 | |
| 90- Tarçın kullanım sıklığınız | |
| Günde 1 | |
| Günde 2 | |
| Günde 3 □ | |
| Günde 3 ten çok □ | |
| Diğer | |
| 91- Tarcını temin ettiğiniz ver v | eya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Eczane \Box | cya yerici (Biracii iazia seçenek işareticy esimi simz) |
| Aktar | |
| İnternet | |
| Market | |
| Diğer | |
| Digei | |
| 92-Tarçın satın alırken nasıl oln işaretleyebilirsiniz) | nasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek |
| Açık | |
| Ambalajlı | |
| Supplement olarak (tablet formus | nda) 🗆 |
| | |
| 93- Tarçın hakkında etkilendiği işaretleyebilirsiniz) | niz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| TV | |
| Doktor veya diyetisyen □ | |
| Dergi / gazete | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiye | _ |
| Diğer | - |

| 94- Tarçın ku | ıllanımından fayda gö | ördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
|-----------------|-------------------------|--|
| Evet | | |
| Hayır | | |
| <i>j</i> | | |
| 95-Keten toh | umu kullanır mısınız' | 9 |
| Evet | | • |
| | _ | |
| Hayır | | |
| Cevabiniz evo | et ise aşağıdaki 96-10 | 3. sorulara cevap veriniz: |
| 96-Keten toh | umunu diyetinizde ha | angi amaçla kullanıyorsunuz? (Birden fazla |
| seçenek işare | tleyebilirsiniz) | |
| Ödem atıcı | | |
| Yağ yakıcı | | |
| · · | siyonlarını düzenleyici | |
| Gaz problemii | | |
| Tokluk hissi /i | | |
| | | |
| Diğer | | |
| 07 Katan tah | umunu kullanım alan | Jammy (Dindon fordo seconaly isometlayahilinsinia) |
| | | ılarınız (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz) |
| Yemekte, baha | arat olarak 🗆 | |
| Çay olarak | | |
| Diğer | | |
| | | |
| 98-Keten toh | umunu tüketime nası | l hazırlarsınız? (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebili | rsiniz) | |
| Kaynatarak (d | lekoksiyon) | |
| Demleyerek (i | • , | П |
| Öğüterek | <i>yy</i> | |
| Olduğu gibi | | |
| Diğer | | |
| Digei | | |
| 99-Keten toh | umu kullanım sıklığıı | 117 |
| Günde 1 | 0 | |
| Günde 2 | | |
| | | |
| Günde 3 | 1 | |
| Günde 3 ten ç | ok 🗆 | |
| Diğer | | |
| | | |
| | 8 | niz yer veya yerler (Birden fazla seçenek |
| işaretleyebili | rsiniz) | |
| Eczane | | |
| Aktar | | |
| İnternet | | |
| Market | | |
| Diğer | | |
| _ 15****** | | |

101-Keten tohumu satın alırken nasıl olmasını tercih ediyorsunuz (Birden fazla seçenek işaretleyebilirsiniz)

67

| Açık | |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Ambalajlı | |
| Supplement olarak (tablet formunda | a) 🗆 |
| 102-Keten tohumu hakkında etkil | ilendiğiniz kaynak nedir? (Birden fazla seçenel |
| işaretleyebilirsiniz) | |
| TV | |
| Doktor veya diyetisyen | |
| Dergi / gazete | |
| Arkadaş, ebeveyn, komşu tavsiyesi | |
| Diğer | |
| 103-Keten tohumu kullanımındar | n fayda gördüğünüzü düşünüyor musunuz? |
| Evet □ | |
| Hayır \square | |
| | |



SAYI: ATADEK-2017/6 KONU: Etik Kurul Kararı

Sayın Ayça Güleryüz,

Sorumluğunu yürüttüğünüz "İstanbul'da Zayıflamak İçin Özel Bir Hastanenin Beslenme Ve Diyet Polikliniğine Başvuran Danışanların Zayıflama Diyetlerine Ek Olarak Bitkisel Destekleri Kullanımları" başlıklı proje 06.04.2017 tarih 2017/6 Sayılı Atadek Kurul Toplantısında görüşülmüş olup 2017-6/8 karar numarası ile tıbbi etik yönden uygun bulunmuştur.

Prof.Dr. İsmail Hakkı ULUS ATADEK Kurul Başkanı

ACIBADEM ÜNİVERSİTESİ TIBBİ ARAŞTIRMALAR DEĞERLENDİRME KURULU (ATADEK)

Etik onay istenen tıbbi araştırmanın başlığı:

İstanbul'da Zayıflamak İçin Özel Bir Hastanenin Beslenme Ve Diyet Polikliniğine Başvuran Danışanların Zayıflama Diyetlerine Ek Olarak Bitkisel Destekleri Kullanımları

Etik onay istenen tıbbi araştırmanın yürütücüsü (sorumlusu):

Diyetisyen Ayça Güleryüz

Karar:

Kabul (Etik olarak uygun) (X) Revizyon ()* Etik olarak uygun değil ()**

Toplantı Tarihi:06/04/2017 Karar Numarası: 2017-6/8

| | Karara | Karara |
|--------|--------------|------------------|
| İmza | Katılıyorum | Katılmıyorum*** |
| 1 mas | (X) | () |
| Like | (X) | () |
| Cull | (<u>X</u>) | () |
| 1801 | (6) | () |
| 17 6 | (7) | () |
| | (2) | () |
| Rholos | (1) | () |
| 3 | (X) | () |
| | İmza | İmza Katılıyorum |

Appendix 3. Resume

Kişisel Bilgiler

| Adı | Ayça | Soyadı | Güleryüz |
|------------|--------------------|--------------|-------------|
| Doğum Yeri | Konak | Doğum Tarihi | 13.08.1991 |
| Uyruğu | T.C | TC Kimlik No | 29959271194 |
| E-mail | aycakpln@gmail.com | Tel | 05364186832 |

Öğrenim Durumu

| Derece | Alan | Mezun Olduğu Kurumun Adı | Mezuniyet Yılı |
|---------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------|
| Yüksek Lisans | Beslenme ve Diyetetik | T.C Yeditepe Üniversitesi | 2019 |
| Lisans | Beslenme ve Diyetetik | T.C Yeditepe Üniversitesi | 2015 |
| Lise | Fen -Matematik | İSTEK Bilge Kağan Anadolu Lisesi | 2010 |

İş Deneyimi (Sondan geçmişe doğru sıralayın)

| Görevi | Kurum | Süre (Yıl - Yıl) |
|------------|----------------------|------------------|
| Diyetisyen | Acıbadem Hastaneleri | 2016-Halen |
| Diyetisyen | Fit Together | 2015-2016 |

Bilgisayar Bilgisi

| Program | Kullanma becerisi |
|------------------|-------------------|
| Microsoft Office | İyi |

^{*}Çok iyi, iyi, orta, zayıf olarak değerlendirin